MASTER AGREEMENT

Between the

WASHINGTON LOCAL BOARD OF EDUCATION

And

TEACHERS' ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON LOCAL SCHOOLS

July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2024

Notes

Table of Contents

PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE 1 – Recognition	1
Section 1 – Recognition of Teachers' Association of Washington Local Schools	1
Section 2 – Recognition of the Board and Management Rights	2
Section 3 – Recognition of the Superintendent	2
Section 4 – Fair Share Fee	2
Section 5 – Bargaining Unit Work	3
ARTICLE 2 – Negotiating Procedures	3
Section 1 – Matters to be Negotiated	3
Section 2 – Matters for Discussion	4
Section 3 – Agreement	4
Section 4 – Affects Bargaining	4
Section 5 – Extra Duty Index Joint Committee	4
ARTICLE 3 – Grievance Procedure	5
Grievance Procedure - Certificated Personnel	5
Definition	5
Informal Procedures (must occur prior to filing any grievance)	5
LEVEL I (Local School)	5
LEVEL II (Central Office)	6
LEVEL III (Binding Arbitration)	6
Section 1 – Superintendent – Association Communications	6
Section 2 – Principal – Building Representatives Meetings	
Section 3 – Board Agendas	7
Section 4 – Complaint Procedures	7
Section 5 – Recordings	
Section 6 – Financial Statement to Association	7
ARTICLE 5 – Personnel Provisions	
Section 1 – Posting of Certificated Vacancies	7
Section 2 – Personnel Records – Employment Record File	
Section 3 – Physical Examinations	
Section 4 – Job Descriptions	
Section 5 – Previous Experience in Washington Local Schools	

Section 6 – Teacher Tenure/Continuing Contract	9
Section 7 – Reduction/Restoration of Certificated Staff	10
Section 8 – Reemployment Under Supplemental Contracts	13
Section 9 – Reemployment of Teachers Employed Under Limited Contract.	13
Section 10 – Contracts – Certificated Personnel	13
Section 11 – Transfer	14
Section 12 – Job Sharing	17
Section 13 – State Teacher Licensure	17
ARTICLE 6 – Association	17
Section 1 – Inter-School Delivery Service	17
Section 2 – Inter-School Phones	17
Section 3 – Use of Building Equipment	17
Section 4 – Association Business During School Day	17
Section 5 – Use of Buildings	18
Section 6 – Association Bulletin Board	18
Section 7 – Association Identification	18
Section 8 – Recruitment and Selection of New Bargaining Unit Members	18
Section 9 – New Teachers	18
Section 10 – Association Representative	18
Section 11 – Association Leave	19
Section 12 – Association Facilities	19
Section 13 – Items of Board Agenda	19
Section 14 – Addressing Board During Board Meetings	19
Section 15 – Release Time	19
Section 16 – Compensation to Association Officers for Association Activities Regulations	
Section 17 – Membership in the Association	20
ARTICLE 7 – Education Protection and Support	20
Section 1 – Safe Working Conditions	20
Section 2 – Teacher Facilities	21
Section 3 – Planning Time	21
Team Work Time	21
Alternative School Planning and Teacher Day	21
Department Chair Release Time	22
Section 4 – Scheduling of Assembly Programs	22
Section 5 – Supply Requisitions	22

Section 6 – Supplies/Materials	22
Section 7 - Class/Subject/Room Assignment	22
Section 8 – Academic Freedom	22
Section 9 – Department Chair/Facilitator Evaluations	22
Section 10 – Evaluation of Bargaining Unit Members	23
Section 11 – Complimentary Passes to Athletic Events and Other S	chool Functions24
Section 12 – Charitable Contributions	24
Section 13 – Leaving Building During Work Day	25
Section 14 – Travel Between Buildings	25
Section 15 – Student Discipline	25
Section 16 – Administering Prescription Medicine to Students	25
Section 17 – Art, Music, and PE, and STEM Specialists - Building	Assignment25
Section 18 – Progressive Discipline	25
Section 19 – Security Video Technology	20
ARTICLE 8 - Instructional Programs	20
Section 1 – Instructional Program	20
Section 2 – Class Size	20
Section 3 – Parent Teacher Conference Days Family Contact Time	20
Section 4 – Grade Cards/Sheets	27
Section 5 – Summer School	27
Section 6 – Specialist Class Time – Elementary	27
Section 7 – School Calendar	27
Section 8 Kindergarten Programming	28
ARTICLE 9 – Training and Staff Development	28
Section 1 – Building Collaboration	28
Section 2 – Professional Development	28
Section 3 – Tuition Benefits	29
Section 4 Professional Learning Day/Teacher Work Day	29
Section 5 – Professional Support	29
Section 6 – Peer Shadowing	31
Section 7 – National Board-Certified Teachers/Master Teacher	31
Section 8 – Special Education	31
Section 9 – Curriculum Initiatives	32
ARTICLE 10 – Attendance	32
Section 1 – Teachers School Day	32
Section 2 – Grade Level/Departmental Meetings Attendance Regul	ations 30

Section 3 – Faculty Meetings Attendance Regulations	32
Section 4 – Attendance on Calamity or Emergency Days	33
Section 5 – Open House	33
ARTICLE 11 - Leaves and Absences	33
Section 1 – Sick Leave	33
Section 2 – Funeral Leave	34
Section 3 – Leave of Absence	34
Section 4 – Maternity, Paternity, or Adoption Leave	35
Section 5 – Military Leave	36
Section 6 – Sabbatical Leave	36
Section 7 – Personal Leave	36
Section 8 – Special Leave	37
Section 9 – Assault Leave	37
Section 10 – Jury Duty Leave or Required Appearance Before State Employ	ment Relations Board .38
Section 11 – Sick Leave Pool	38
ARTICLE 12 – Policy	40
Section 1 – Policy Committee	40
Section 2 – Policy Book	40
ARTICLE 13 – Pay Procedures	40
Section 1 – Pay Schedule	40
Section 2 – Extra Duty Pay Procedures	40
Section 3 – Pay for Extra Class Assignment	41
Section 4 – Pay for Student Supervisory Assignment	41
Section 5 – Extra Class Assignment Resulting from Teacher Absences	41
Section 6 – Payroll Deductions	41
Section 7 - Curriculum Work	42
Section 8 – Direct Deposit	42
Section 9 – Pay for Substituting	42
ARTICLE 14 – Equal Opportunity Employment	42
Section 1 – Employment Practices	42
Section 2 – Contract Provisions	42
Section 3 – Rights of Citizenship	42
ARTICLE 15 – General Agreements	43
Section 1 – New or Revised Positions	43
Section 2 - Board and Association Consultation	43
Section 3 - Maintenance of Standards	43

Section 4 - Provisions Contrary to Law	43
Section 5 - Integration Provision	43
Section 6 - Duration of Contract	43
Section 7 - Additional Positions - Extra Pay	43
Section 8 - Substitute Teachers	43
Section 9 - No Strike	44
Section 10 - Definition of Days	44
Section 11 - Adjustment of Time Limits	44
Section 12 - Gender References	45
Section 13 - References to Teachers	45
Section 14 - Enrollment of Children of Employees	45
ARTICLE 16 – General Economic Provisions	45
Section 1 – Salary – Prior Service Credit	45
Section 2 – Placement of New Employees on Salary Schedule	45
Section 3 – Salary Scale – Degree/Credit Advancement	45
Section 4 – Trade and Industry Instructors (T&I)	46
Section 5 – Career Technical Business/Business Office Education Instructors (BOE)	47
Section 6 – Travel Reimbursement	47
Section 7 – Outdoor Education	47
Section 8 – Counselors	47
Section 9 – Deans	47
Section 10 – Social Worker	47
Section 11 – Junior High Curriculum Facilitators	47
Section 12 - Curriculum Consultant	48
Section 13 – Speech Pathologists/Occupational Therapists	48
ARTICLE 17 – Insurance	48
Section 1 – Health Care Insurance	48
Part-Time Bargaining Unit Member/Insurance Coverage	49
Health Care Premium Savings Payment	49
Section 2 – Life Insurance	49
Section 3 – Dental Insurance	49
Section 4 – Vision Insurance	50
Section 5 – Prescription Drug Insurance	50
Section 6 – Employee Liability Insurance	50
Section 7 – COBRA - Continuation of Insurance	50
Section 8 _ 125 Plan	50

Section 9 – Strike - Continuance of Health Care Insurance	
ARTICLE 18 - Severance Pay - Certificated Personnel	50
ARTICLE 19 - Retirement Pay - Certificated Personnel	51
ARTICLE 20 – Retirement and/or Severance Pay	52
Upon Death During Employment	52
ARTICLE 21 - STRS Pick Up	52
Extra Duty Schedule	52
ATHLETIC ACTIVITIES	53
EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES	Error! Bookmark not defined.
WHITMER MUSICAL and PLAYS	Error! Bookmark not defined.
DIRECTOR	Error! Bookmark not defined.
SUPERVISORY AND/OR INSTRUCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES	Error! Bookmark not defined.
MISCELLANEOUS	Error! Bookmark not defined.
ADDITIONAL STIPENDS	Error! Bookmark not defined.
EXTENDED TIME KEY	Error! Bookmark not defined.
APPENDIX A – Jeopardy Sheet	59
APPENDIX B – School Psychologist	610
APPENDIX C – Tutor Pay Scale	61
APPENDIX D – English Second Language (ESL) Pay Scale	60
APPENDIX E – Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule	62
SUBSTITUTES & EXTRA TIME PAY SCHEDULE 2021-2022 School	ol Year61
SUBSTITUTES & EXTRA TIME PAY SCHEDULE 2022-2023 School	ol Year62
SUBSTITUTES & EXTRA TIME PAY SCHEDULE 2023-2024 School	ol Tear63
APPENDIX F – Retire/Re-Hire Teaching Staff	65
TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE: 2021-2022	66
TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE: 2022-2023	66
TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE: 2023-2024	66
Signature Page	69

PREAMBLE

It is the purpose of this document to establish the relationship between the Board of Education of the Washington Local School District and the Teachers' Association of Washington Local Schools, and to set forth an orderly procedure for the consideration and resolution of negotiable matters.

ARTICLE 1 – Recognition

Section 1 – Recognition of Teachers' Association of Washington Local Schools

The Board recognizes the Teachers' Association of Washington Local Schools, hereinafter referred to as the Association, affiliated with the Northwest Northwestern Ohio Education Association, the Ohio Education Association and the National Education Association, as the exclusive bargaining representative of all full- and part-time certificated staff, excluding as defined in O.R.C. §4117.01 confidential employees, management level employees, employees who act in a fiduciary capacity, supervisors, students, seasonal and casual employees, non- professional employees, guards as defined in O.R.C. §4117.06(D)(2), substitute teachers, special education supervisor, trade and industry supervisors, business office education supervisor, instructional materials center coordinator, remedial reading coordinator, guidance supervisor, coordinator of computer services, adult education administrator, adult education teachers, apprenticeship coordinator, apprenticeship instructors, case manager, and educational technologist.

Certificated part-time employees are employed on a regular basis, but less than full-time. They may be paid on the teacher salary schedule on a pro-rata basis or on an hourly basis and do not include daily substitutes. Summer school teachers who are otherwise members of the bargaining unit are included in the unit.

Recognition of English as a Second Language (ESL) instructors, special education instructors/tutors, dealing exclusively with students in grades K-12, as members of the bargaining unit, shall be limited to the following specific provisions of the contract: Article 3 – Grievance Procedure; Article 4 Section 4 – Complaint Procedures; Article 5 Section 2 – Personnel Records – Employment Record File; Article 6 All Sections - Association; Article 7 Section 1 – Education Protection and Support, Section 2 – Teacher Facilities, Section 3 – Planning Time, Section 5 – Supply Requisitions, Section 6 – Supplies/Materials, Section 8 – Academic Freedom, Section 10 – Evaluation; Article 9 Section 3 – Tuition Benefits, Section 8 – Special Education; Article 11 Section 1 – Sick Leave, Section 2 – Funeral Leave, Section 4 – Maternity/Paternity Leave, Section 9 – Assault Leave; Article 13 Section 1 – Pay Schedule, Section 6 – Payroll Deductions, and Section 8 – Direct Deposit; Article 14 All Sections – Equal Opportunity Employer; Article 17; and Extra Duty Pay Schedule Section #239 – Rate of Pay, Appendix C (tutor pay schedule). The provisions of this paragraph supersede and replace any conflicting provisions of the Ohio Revised Code, including but not limited to Sections 3317.13, 3319.141, 3319.07, 3319.071, 3319.09, 3319.08, 3319.111, 3319.111, 3319.112, 3319.12, 3319.13, 3319.131, 3319.141, 3319.16 and/or 3319.17 of the Ohio Revised Code.

When new positions are created or existing positions revised, regardless of the title assigned, the parties shall negotiate whether they are to be placed in the bargaining unit and, if so, the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment for each such position. Negotiations shall take place pursuant to the appropriate negotiating procedures in Article 2.

Section 2 – Recognition of the Board and Management Rights

The Association recognizes the Board as the legally elected body which, by law, has the final authority and responsibility of establishing the policies for the Washington Local School District and as the employer of all personnel of the school system.

The Board hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitations, all the powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Ohio, and of the United States including the rights specified in §4117.08(C) of the Ohio Revised Code, subject to the specific terms of this agreement. Such rights include, but are not limited to, the right to hire, promote, transfer, assign, retain employees in positions, suspend, demote, discharge, remove or take other disciplinary action against employees for just cause, to relieve employees from duties because of lack of work or funds or other legitimate reasons, to determine the methods, means, employees or persons by which Board operations shall be conducted, to direct the schedule, shift, and location of the work of employees so that the Board may operate in the most efficient manner, subject only to the specific terms of this agreement.

All management rights are retained by the Board, including the sole and exclusive right to manage its operation, buildings, and facilities and to direct the work force including the rights specified in §4117.08(C) of the Ohio Revised Code, subject to the specific terms of this agreement.

Section 3 – Recognition of the Superintendent

The parties recognize the school superintendent as the chief executive officer of the school system and the chief educational officer of the school system.

Section 4 – Fair Share Fee

All employees in the bargaining unit who, sixty (60) days from date of hire, or from the effective date of this agreement, whichever is later, are not members in good standing of the Association shall pay a fair share fee to the Association as a condition of employment. The Board shall deduct from the pay of members of the bargaining unit who elect not to become or to remain members of the Association a fair share fee for the Association's representation of such non-members during the term of this agreement. The deduction of the fair share fee by the Board from the payroll check of the employee shall be automatic and does not require the written authorization of the employee. No non-member filing a timely demand shall be required to subsidize partisan political or ideological causes not germane to the Association's work in the realm of collective bargaining.

Notice of the amount of the annual fair share fee amount, which shall not be more than 100% of the unified dues of the Association, shall be transmitted by the Association to the treasurer of the Board on or about September 15 of each year during the term of this agreement for the purpose of determining amounts to be payroll-deducted.

The Association will transmit the names of all bargaining unit members who are not members in good standing to the treasurer of the Board on or after November 15 of each year as soon as possible after that date.

Payment to the Association of the fair share fee shall be made by the Board's treasurer to the Association treasurer within ten (10) days of deduction. The Board further agrees to accompany each such payment with a list of the names of the bargaining unit members for whom all such fair share fee deductions were made, the period covered, and the amounts deducted for each.

The fair share fee agreement between the Board and the Association does not require any employee to become a member of the Association.

Payroll deduction of fair share fees shall begin at the second payroll period in January except that no fair share fee deductions shall be made for bargaining unit members employed after October until sixty (60) days after date of hire.

The treasurer of the Board shall, upon notification from the Association that a member has terminated membership, commence the deduction of the fair share fee with respect to the former member, and the amount of the fee yet to be deducted shall be the annual fair share fee less the amount previously paid through payroll deduction or otherwise to the Association.

The Association represents to the Board that an internal rebate procedure has been established in accordance with Section 4117.09(C) of the revised code and that a procedure for challenging the amount of the representation fee has been established and will be given to each member of the bargaining unit who does not join the Association and that such procedure and notice shall be in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and the Constitutions of the United States and the State of Ohio.

Upon timely demand, non-members may apply to the Association for an advance reduction/rebate of the fair share fee pursuant to the internal procedure adopted by the Association.

The Association agrees to indemnify the Board for any cost of liability incurred as a result of the implementation and enforcement of this provision provided that:

- A. The Board shall give a ten (10) day written notice of any claim made or action filed against the employer by a non-member for which indemnification may be claimed;
- B. The Association and the Board mutually agree upon counsel to represent and defend the employer. In the event the parties cannot agree upon counsel, the selection of counsel will be submitted to arbitration pursuant to the rules for expedited arbitration of the American Arbitration Association;
- C. The Board agrees to (1) give full and complete cooperation and assistance to the Association, and its counsel at all levels of the proceeding, (2) permit the Association to intervene as a party if it so desires, and/or (3) to not oppose the Association or its affiliates' application to file briefs Amicus Curiae in the action;
- D. The Board acted in good faith compliance with the fair share fee provision of this agreement; however, there shall be no indemnification of the Board if the Board intentionally or willfully fails to apply (except due to court order) such fair share fee provisions herein.

Section 5 – Bargaining Unit Work

With the exception of programs or services provided for students by other districts or agencies, all work done by members of the bargaining unit as defined in ARTICLE 1 of this agreement, including any and all work done under extra duty contracts, is the work of the members of the bargaining unit. Accordingly, no reduction in force shall occur within the bargaining unit as a result of work being subcontracted during the terms of this agreement.

Extra duty positions bargained by the Association will not be filled, without prior posting, following vacancy posting procedures of ARTICLE 5, Section 1.

If no properly qualified candidate from the unit applies, then persons outside of the bargaining unit may be assigned to such extra duty positions.

<u>ARTICLE 2 – Negotiating Procedures</u>

Section 1 – Matters to be Negotiated

Those matters which shall be negotiable are wages, hours, terms and other conditions of employment and the continuation, modification, or deletion of an existing provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Section 2 – Matters for Discussion

Available financial data concerning Washington Local School District shall be discussed by members of the two negotiating teams thirty (30) days prior to formal negotiations on salary, welfare provisions, and working conditions.

Section 3 – Agreement

Negotiations will be governed by provisions of Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code except that affects negotiations taking place during the term of the Master Agreement shall take place pursuant to the provisions of Article 2, Section 4, below. The resulting agreement shall be binding on both parties, and may be changed only by mutual agreement.

Section 4 – Affects Bargaining

The Board may make and implement decisions within its management rights pursuant to provisions of Article 1, Section 2, of the Master Agreement, but must give the Association notice and opportunity to negotiate if the decision affects wages, hours, terms and other conditions of employment and/or the modification or deletion of a term of this agreement. In affording the Association that opportunity to negotiate, the Board shall give the Association President or his/her designee thirty (30) calendar days' notice of the intended action, unless it would be impractical or inconsistent with legal requirement to defer implementation. It shall be the Association's responsibility to initiate bargaining by filing written notice with the Superintendent within ten (10) calendar days of notification of the intended action. If the Association does not make a timely request for bargaining, the Board may implement its intended action without negotiations.

Upon Association request for affects bargaining pursuant to this section and during the bargaining period of thirty (30) calendar days, the parties will negotiate the relevant issues. Should agreement be reached and ratified by both parties, said agreement shall be incorporated as of the date of ratification into this Master Agreement. Should agreement not be reached, unless the Board withdraws its intended action, the parties will mediate the issue with the assistance of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The mediation period shall not exceed two (2) weeks. If there is no mutual agreement after the mediation period, the parties shall submit the effects of the Board action to issue by issue, final and binding expedited arbitration before a mutually agreed upon arbitrator. Following the hearing, his/her decision binding upon both parties will be rendered separately on each issue at impasse. Should the Association request negotiation hereunder of alleged affects upon mandatory bargaining subjects of action by the Board which it implemented without notice, said Arbitrator shall have the right to hear the nature of the action and its alleged affects and determine whether negotiations shall be conducted under this Section. Each party shall pay its own expenses and the expenses of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by both parties.

Section 5 – Extra Duty Index Joint Committee

Prior to the beginning of negotiations for the next agreement, an EDI team representing TAWLS and an EDI team representing the Board will meet to bargain EDI. These teams will issue only joint statements.

The EDI teams shall make a recommendation to the negotiating teams for new extra duty positions, elimination of present positions, and/or index changes.

If accepted by the negotiating teams, the EDI recommendations shall be recommended to the Board and TAWLS membership for ratification to be incorporated in the next agreement.

ARTICLE 3 – Grievance Procedure

Grievance Procedure – Certificated Personnel

The purpose of this procedure is to secure equitable solutions to problems at the lowest possible administrative level and within a reasonable amount of time. All instructionally certificated personnel shall have the right to present grievances in accordance with these procedures.

Definition

A grievance shall mean a written complaint by a member of the bargaining unit or the Association that there has been a violation of the terms of this written agreement between the Board of Education and the Association. The term "grievance" shall not include any complaint concerning matters not specifically included within the terms of this agreement nor any matter in which the Board of Education is without authority to take final action. All grievances hereunder shall be submitted on the prescribed form which shall be available in the school office and from the Association building representative.

A "grievant" is the person(s) and/or the Association making the complaint.

The failure of the grievant to act on any grievance within the prescribed time limits will act as a bar to any further consideration of the grievance and any administrator's failure to give a decision within the time limit prescribed for one level permits the grievant to proceed to the next level. The time limits, however, may be extended by mutual written agreement.

This grievance procedure is the sole and exclusive remedy for the adjustment of grievances as defined herein. An agreement reached between the parties under the grievance procedure and any decision of the arbitrator under Level III shall be final and binding upon the Association, the grievant, all employees covered by this agreement, and the Board.

Level I resolutions shall be without precedent. By mutual agreement in writing between the employer and the Association, Level II resolutions may be effected on a non-precedent basis, neither party having the right thereafter to cite or rely upon that resolution as a precedent in any subsequent grievance or as a past practice or for any other reason whatsoever than the resolution of the specific grievance thereby resolved.

At any level of the grievance procedure, the Association president and/or the president's designee will be permitted to attend all meetings with the grievant that involve the resolution of the grievance.

Informal Procedures (must occur prior to filing any grievance)

If a bargaining unit member has a complaint, he/she shall discuss it informally with the administrator involved. The teacher may be accompanied by an association representative in this meeting with the administrator, who may also have a representative. The object of the meeting, for both parties, shall be to resolve this complaint as soon as possible in an informal manner. This informal meeting must be requested within ten (10) working days of the occurrence. The meeting must be requested by the bargaining unit member.

LEVEL I (Local School)

If the complaint is not resolved informally, a grievance may be filed with the principal or appropriate administrator within fifteen (15) working days of the informal meeting. In the event that the principal or appropriate administrator at Level I lacks authority to resolve the grievance, it may be filed at Level II within the above stated time limit. Within five (5) working days the principal or appropriate administrator shall meet with the grievant to resolve the grievance. The principal or appropriate administrator shall indicate his disposition of the grievance in writing within five (5) working days after meeting the grievant and simultaneously forward a copy to the grievant and the president of the Association.

LEVEL II (Central Office)

In the event a grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved at Level I the grievant may file, within five (5) working days of receipt of the Level I decision by the grievant (or in his/her absence, by the Association president's designee), a copy of the grievance report form with the director of human resources. The director of human resources or other central office administrator as appointed by the superintendent shall conduct the hearing on the written grievance at which time information may be presented by the grievant and person against whom the grievance was filed. This hearing shall be held within five (5) working days after receipt of the grievance by the director of human resources. After conferring with the designated central office administrator, the superintendent and designated central office administrator shall render a decision in writing within three (3) working days following the hearing. Copies of the written decision shall be simultaneously forwarded to the grievant, the president of the Association, and the building principal or other appropriate administrator.

LEVEL III (Binding Arbitration)

If the grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved at Level II, either party may, within five (5) working days of receipt of the Level II decision by the grievant (or in his/her absence, by the Association president or the president's designee), in writing, request arbitration and the other party or parties shall be obligated to proceed with arbitration, in the manner hereinafter provided. The party requesting arbitration shall promptly file a demand for arbitration under the voluntary labor arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association. Each party shall pay its own expenses. The expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by both parties.

The arbitrator shall have the authority and jurisdiction to determine the appropriate interpretation and/or application of the specific terms of this agreement as they relate to the grievance in question, but he shall have no authority to modify, alter or amend in any way the terms of this agreement nor in matters committed by this agreement to the discretion of the administration or Board of Education to substitute his judgment for that of either of them.

Within the five (5) working days of receipt of the Level II decision by the grievant, by mutual agreement the parties may seek mediation through Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) before proceeding to arbitration. If either party does not agree to mediation, the timeline and procedure for arbitration shall remain as stated. If both parties agree to mediation, the party making the request for mediation shall promptly file a demand for mediation under the voluntary labor mediation rules of the FMCS. If the mediation date is not within 45 days of receipt of the Level II decision by the grievant, either party may opt out of the process and proceed to arbitration through the American Arbitration Association.

ARTICLE 4 – Communications

Section 1 – Superintendent – Association Communications

The superintendent and his representatives shall meet at times mutually agreed upon, with representatives of the Association to discuss school concerns and/or procedures of the negotiated agreement in an effort to maintain effective communications. All individual building concerns will first be discussed at the building level.

Section 2 – Principal – Building Representatives Meetings

The principal and the building representatives in each building shall meet monthly, or at times mutually agreed upon, to discuss building concerns. Every attempt shall be made to discuss and resolve said items of discussion at these meetings. Either party may make and maintain notes of the meetings, provided however that any notes or minutes purporting to be or distributed as official minutes of such meetings must be approved by both parties prior to distribution. Principals and building representatives in each building shall meet monthly or at times mutually agreed upon to discuss building concerns brought forward by building representatives.

Section 3 – Board Agendas

Agendas and supporting documentation for scheduled meetings will be available on the district's website at least two (2) days prior to the official meeting. The Association president will be notified via email as soon as an addenda to the agenda occurs.

Section 4 – Complaint Procedures

Any complaint written or oral, from any parent, student or other person regarding a teacher shall be brought to the written attention of the teacher involved within five (5) working days of its receipt. Notification of a complaint and preliminary inquiry does not constitute teacher discipline. However, if the complaint may lead to discipline, written notification will be provided.

The teacher will be given an opportunity to respond to and/or resolve the complaint. After the opportunity has been afforded to resolve the complaint, the disposition of the complaint will be determined by the administrator. If the disposition is that the complaint is valid, a meeting will be held with the teacher, his/her representative, and the administrator.

A teacher has the right to attach a rebuttal to a letter of reprimand or letter of complaint which is placed in the teacher's Employment Record File.

Section 5 – Recordings

Recordings of conversations, conferences, and meetings shall be done only upon the consent of all persons involved. Personnel grievance hearings, student suspension or expulsion hearings, or any other meeting where the law mandates that a verbatim record be kept, shall not require consent of the persons involved. Each party may provide its own recording equipment. Any recording made by the Board or its representatives and maintained by it shall be available at all reasonable times for inspection. Upon request, a copy of it shall be made available at all reasonable times for inspection. Upon request, a copy of it shall be made available within a reasonable period of time at the cost of the person making the request. The administration will inform the teacher of these rights at the time of the proposed recording.

Section 6 – Financial Statement to Association

The treasurer shall send two (2) copies of the monthly financial statement to the Association president.

ARTICLE 5 – Personnel Provisions

Section 1 – Posting of Certificated Vacancies

Certificated personnel employed by the Washington Local Board of Education will be notified as to vacancies, teaching and extracurricular, which occur within the district by the posting of such vacancies in each building pursuant to Article 5, Section 11, Transfer and Reassignment. The building principal shall determine a designated place for the placement of the vacancies listings.

A copy of the posting will be sent to a designated Association representative in each building, who must notify the personnel office within twenty-four (24) hours if the notice was not posted, or the posting shall be deemed complete.

The original vacant position will be posted for five (5) days before the vacant position is filled. Transfer requests will be considered before an outside candidate is employed. Vacancies that occur during the school year will be filled on a temporary basis and shall be posted as vacant at the end of that school year. In-season extracurricular vacancies may be filled during the five-day posting period in order to provide for continuity of program. EDI positions will not be posted as vacant unless a resignation occurs or it is determined that the person will not be

reemployed as per Article 5, Section 8 of the Master Agreement. Employees within a building shall be notified of Extra Duty vacancies within their building (i.e., head teacher, student council, department chair). ALL employees shall be notified of extra duty vacancies open district-wide (i.e., coaching, summer school teacher, KIA chairperson).

During the summer months when regular school is not in session, teachers may request, in writing, to receive a notification of designated vacancies. Vacancies will also be posted on a designated bulletin board in central office. Teachers may call the human resources office to receive an update on vacant positions.

During the summer, every attempt will be made to contact employees who have transfer requests on file; employees must leave telephone numbers where they can be reached. New vacancies will be available on the job hotline.

Section 2 – Personnel Records – Employment Record File

The Board shall create and maintain a personal information file for each bargaining unit member. This file shall be known as the Employment Record File.

Any bargaining unit member for whom an Employment Record File is maintained shall, upon request, be permitted to examine his/her Employment Record File, with the exception of those documents or other communications regarding the initial employment of the bargaining unit member by the Washington Local Schools.

The bargaining unit member shall be made aware of the deposit of any item in his/her Employment Record File by the person making such deposit. Evidence of the knowledge of items contained in the Employment Record File of a bargaining unit member shall be determined by the bargaining unit member's signature on the item, or by a statement in the item that it is to become part of the Employment Record File. This written documentation or notification cannot be through email. No anonymous information shall be included in a bargaining unit member's Employment Record File.

It is mandatory that the following items be deposited in the Employment Record File of each bargaining unit member:

The original copy of all evaluations and rebuttals thereto

- A. Copies of all certificates held.
- B. Official transcripts of undergraduate and graduate work completed.
- C. Copies of requests for transfer, leaves of absence, maternity leaves, military leaves, and all replies to such requests from administrators.
- D. Copies of letters of reprimand, letters of commendation, or letters of appreciation.
- E. Copies of current contracts.
- F. The application for employment.
- G. Other items may be included in the Employment Record File by complying with the above paragraph.

In the event that a bargaining unit member does not wish an item to be deposited in his/her Employment Record File, an appeal, in writing, shall be made to the superintendent/designee. The superintendent/designee shall have final authority in the decision. The bargaining unit member shall have the right to rebut any item deposited in the Employment Record File against his/her wishes.

All documents of any nature pertaining to a bargaining unit member's performance shall be removed from the Employment Record File after a period of five (5) years, contingent upon a written request from the bargaining unit member, subject to restrictions in any applicable state or federal law. Individual documents may be removed subject to the approval of the director of human resources.

If any bargaining unit member disputes the accuracy, relevancy, timeliness, or completeness of information deposited in his/her Employment Record File, Levels I and II of the grievance procedures may be implemented concerning such information. The factual accuracy of an item may be challenged through Level III of the grievance procedure. This does not include matters of judgment nor include the teacher evaluation or Jeopardy Sheet.

Section 3 – Physical Examinations

The Board shall provide reasonable accommodation of member disabilities in accordance with law. A member with disability who wants accommodation shall, via signed document, inform the director of human resources of the request and shall provide any pertinent medical information needed to make decisions regarding appropriate accommodations. The Board may require a physician's certification of the need for accommodation and/or the employee's ability to perform job duties. In accordance with law, the Board may also require that the member undergo a medical examination by a physician of the Board's choice, at Board expense, in connection with a request for accommodation.

Section 4 – Job Descriptions

A committee, with equal representation of the Association president and the superintendent, will be formed to develop or to revise job descriptions for those positions within the bargaining unit. Such job descriptions for new positions will be developed prior to the time the position is filled.

The Board reserves the right to adopt and/or revise any job description thirty (30) days after submission to the committee, provided that the Association may request to bargain the effects of such Board action pursuant to Article 2, Section 4 of this agreement.

Section 5 – Previous Experience in Washington Local Schools

Previous satisfactory experience in Washington Local Schools will receive high priority in employing teachers.

Section 6 – Teacher Tenure/Continuing Contract

Teachers who believe they meet the requirements for tenure must submit the following to the Human Resources office by April 30 of the year of eligibility. It is the policy of the Washington Local Board of Education that no change of contract be permitted for the purpose of securing tenure after June 1 of the previous school year.

(1) Written notice of eligibility for continuing contract, (2) official transcripts verifying completion of the required semester hours or master's degree, (3) verification of the required licensure to obtain tenure, and (4) if applicable, verification from a previous Ohio school district in which tenure was obtained.

Teachers become eligible for a continuing contract by fulfilling one of the following requirements as follows in A, B, or C, subject to limitations of item D.

- A. Teachers issued the initial Ohio educator certificate or license prior to January 1, 2011, shall meet the requirements of one of the following:
 - 1. Holding an eight-year professional, a permanent, or life teaching certificate and completed three (3) years of successful teaching in Washington Local Schools.
 - 2. Holding a professional educator license, a senior professional educator license or a lead professional educator license and completing three (3) years of successful teaching in

Washington Local Schools, plus either of the following:

- a. If no master's degree was held at the time of initially receiving a license, thirty (30) semester hours of course work in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of the license as specified by rules of the state board of education.
- b. If a master's degree was held at the time of initially receiving a license, six (6) semester hours of course work in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of the license as specified by rules of the state board of education.
- B. Teachers issued an initial Ohio teaching license on or after January 1, 2011, shall meet the following requirements:
 - 1. Held an educator license for at least seven (7) years.
 - 2. Completed three (3) years of successful teaching in Washington Local Schools.
 - 3. Completed the applicable one of the following:
 - a. If no master's degree was held at the time of initially receiving a license, thirty (30) semester hours of course work in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of the license as specified by rules of the state board of education.
 - b. If a master's degree was held at the time of initially receiving a license, six (6) semester hours of course work in the area of licensure or in an area related to the teaching field since the initial issuance of the license as specified by rules of the state board of education.
- C. For any teacher who previously attained tenure in another Ohio system prior to employment in the Washington Local Schools, the requirement is completion of two (2) years of successful teaching in Washington Local Schools.
- D. Tutors shall not become eligible for a continuing contract while serving in such capacity. However, when a tutor is subsequently hired under a regular teacher limited contract, teachers may apply one or more years of service in the tutor capacity toward the service requirement for a continuing contract, providing that at least two (2) years of service toward the continuing contract shall be served in the contracted teacher position. All qualifying course work completed during tutor service shall be recognized for continuing contract eligibility purposes. The provisions of this paragraph supersede and replace any conflicting provisions of Sections 3319.08 and/or 3319.11 of the Ohio Revised Code.

Section 7 – Reduction/Restoration of Certificated Staff

In compliance with the requirements of HB 153, all teachers will be considered "comparable" in their evaluations through June 30, 2021 for purposes of Reduction in Force only. The OTES Committee will meet annually for verification of compliance with current state law.

A. Procedures for Reduction in Force:

When the Board determines that staff reductions shall occur, the following procedures shall apply:

- 1. All regularly contracted teachers in the Washington Local School District shall be placed on seniority lists in their areas of teaching licensure.
- 2. The number of persons affected by a reduction in force will be kept to a minimum by not employing replacements for employees who retire or resign, or whose limited contracts are not renewed on the basis of performance.
- 3. The director of human resources will meet with teachers who are being considered for placement on a reduction in force list to explain to them the ramifications of this action. The explanation will include the effect on remaining pay, fringe benefits, and reemployment procedures, etc.
- 4. Seniority shall be determined by the length of continuous service in the Washington Local School District. Among those with the same length of continuous service, seniority shall be determined by:
 - a. the date of the Board meeting at which the teacher was hired, and then by
 - b. the date on which the teacher submitted job application
 - c. the earliest date/time the original contract was received in the Human Resources office.
- 5. The Board agrees that when a teacher is eligible for tenure, the tenure decision will be made prior to a reduction in force decision.

B. Suspension of Limited Contracts

Reduction not achieved through attrition will be made by suspending limited contracts of employment prior to suspension of continuing contracts, subject to appropriate licensure.

- 1. Before implementing a reduction in force by the suspension of limited contracts, the Board shall give written notice to the Association, through its president, of its intent to affect a reduction in force through the suspension of limited contracts. Within ten (10) days of receiving said notice, the Association shall be given the opportunity to address the Board in an open meeting for the purpose of presenting both orally and in writing its views on the proposed reduction in force.
- 2. Except as otherwise required to comply with state and federal laws relating to employment decisions, limited contract teachers will be selected for retention or suspension on the basis of seniority and licensure. Teachers selected for suspension shall be placed on a reduction in force list, compiled from the seniority list described above, provided, however, limited contract teachers whose contracts are not renewed for performance reasons shall not be placed on the reduction in force list.

C. Suspension of Continuing Contracts

Suspension of contracts for tenured teachers shall be pursuant to Section 3319.17 O.R.C.

D. Recall Procedures

- 1. A teacher who is placed on the reduction in force list shall be so notified in writing by administration. These teachers shall also be informed in writing of the expiration dates of all their fringe benefits at least thirty (30) days prior to those dates. A teacher shall be offered reemployment when a position becomes available for which he/she is certified.
- 2. Teachers on the reduction in force list shall be offered reemployment to positions for which they are certified in order of seniority subject to statutory requirements giving preference to teachers with continuing contracts placed on the reduction in force list. No new teachers shall be employed while there are teachers on the reduction in force list who are certified for that position.

The Board shall give written notice of an offer of reemployment by sending a registered or certified letter to said teacher at his/her last-known address. It shall be the responsibility of each teacher to notify the Board of any change in address. The teacher's address as it appears on the Board's records shall be conclusive when used in connection with an offer of reemployment or other notice to the teacher. If a teacher fails to accept the offer of reemployment in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days, or within five (5) days if the offer is delivered within ten (10) days prior to the start of a school year or semester, from the date said offer is delivered at the last known address of the teacher, said teacher shall be considered to have rejected said offer and shall be removed from the reduction in force list.

In the event a teacher is removed from the reduction in force list, said teacher must make application for reemployment in accordance with established procedures if he/she desires to be considered for employment by the Washington Local School District.

- 3. A teacher on the reduction in force list shall continue to accumulate seniority but shall, upon accepting an offer of reemployment, return to the system with the same accumulation of sick leave days, salary schedule placement and status as the teacher would have received in the year following receipt of the notice of suspension of contract regardless of interim circumstances (e.g.: a teacher whose limited contract was suspended after three (3) or more years of employment with the District and who obtains licensure otherwise qualifying for continuing contract status while on the reduction in force list would nonetheless return as a limited contract teacher and would not be eligible for a continuing contract until having served one (1) additional full school year as such limited contract teacher).
- 4. If a teacher with a continuing contract on the reduction in force list accepts employment for a full school year with another school district, the teacher shall so notify the director of human resources immediately. Teachers with a continuing contract on the reduction in force list shall remain on the reduction in force list indefinitely or until the individual declines a position that is of equal stature.

E. Availability of Seniority and Reduction in Force Lists

Both the seniority lists and the reduction in force list as described above shall be made available to the Association president, the director of human resources, and each building principal.

F. Fringe Benefits (Life insurance, hospitalization, vision and dental insurance)

For teachers on the reduction in force lists, fringe benefits, consisting of life insurance, hospitalization, and vision and dental insurance, shall be paid by the Board through August 31. Effective September 1, such teachers may maintain these benefits by paying their own premiums for the duration of their recall rights.

Section 8 – Reemployment Under Supplemental Contracts

Supplemental contracts are for a one-year period and are for responsibilities beyond a basic teaching contract. Supplemental contracts may be nonrenewed, provided that the superintendent/designee informs the holder of a supplemental contract in writing on or before June 15 of the intent to recommend nonrenewal of such supplemental contract. The holder of this supplemental contract shall be given an opportunity to meet with the superintendent/designee prior to Board action.

This provision does not apply to the positions of dean, counselor, special education teacher.

Section 9 - Reemployment of Teachers Employed Under Limited Contract

Prior to recommending the nonrenewal of a teacher on a limited contract, administrators involved shall properly utilize the teacher evaluation instrument, including specific notification of deficiencies of a teacher's effectiveness in the classroom with recommendations for improvement, and the administrators shall work with the teacher to correct the deficiencies.

The superintendent will make a recommendation for renewal or nonrenewal of a teacher to the Board of Education on the basis of deficiencies identified in the teacher evaluation instrument and/or matters embraced in Section 3319.16, Ohio Revised Code.

The reemployment or nonrenewal of teachers employed under limited contracts shall be governed solely by the procedure established therefore in Section 3319.11, Ohio Revised Code, as now in effect or as hereafter amended or any successor statute governing that subject, except that after three (3) years of employment with the Washington Local Schools, a teacher will be provided reasons for nonrenewal.

The positions of dean, counselor, special education teacher, and elementary reading improvement teacher (K-6) are subject to the foregoing provisions.

Section 10 – Contracts – Certificated Personnel

A limited contract shall be entered into by the Board of Education with each teacher employed by the Board who holds a resident educator, provisional or temporary license.

A teacher employed under a limited contract is automatically reemployed unless he/she receives written notice on or before June 1 that he/she is not to be reemployed.

Notwithstanding the above provisions of this Section, tutors shall receive contracts of one (1) year or less in duration only, which shall expire automatically at the end of the stated contract term. No further action or notice from the Board shall be required and the Board will not be subject to the Ohio Revised Code evaluation and/or notification timelines for nonrenewal. The provisions of this paragraph supersede and replace any conflicting provisions of this Agreement or Sections 3319.07, 3319.08, 3319.11, 3319.111, 3319.112, and/or 3319.12 of the Ohio Revised Code.

A teacher wishing to resign/retire shall notify the director of human resources of such intent in writing as soon as possible.

No teacher may terminate his contract after July 10 preceding the contract year without the consent of the Board of Education. The penalty for an unauthorized resignation is a one-year suspension of certificate if the Board of Education files a complaint with the State Superintendent for Public Instruction.

Section 11 – Transfer

A. Definitions

Vacancy – A newly created certificated staff position or an open position for purpose of transfer.

Seniority – District-wide within licensure area - always based on date of hire in the district - if tie, then date application form is received.

Transfer – Building to building or department to department if there is a change in the primary assignment.

Assignment – Teaching position to include only grade level K-6 within a building or subject area within a department.

A reassignment is a change in grade level within a K-6 building; a change in teaching assignments between departments if a person is already in those departments; or a building change within a K-12, 7-8 or 7-12 department if the primary assignment is changed. Reassignments will not be posted district-wide.

A displacement, for purposes of transfer, is a situation in which there is no longer a position available at any grade level within a K-6 building or in a department for the upcoming school year for an educator currently assigned to said building or department.

Primary Assignment – Majority of teaching assignment in one building or a department. If the assignment is equal, then it goes back to the preceding year. If the primary assignment cannot be determined by the above, the teacher is deemed to have primary assignments in both buildings or departments.

Whitmer/CTC/Annex – One building.

Postings

Posting for purposes of transfer will be done from April until the end of the first teacher work day. prior to hiring from outside of the District.

After a job is posted the administration may either interview and fill the position or decide not to fill and so notify the applicants.

Highly Qualified – It is understood that teachers must meet the "highly qualified" standard for all positions.

Departments:

K-12

- Reading
- Art
- Music
- PE

- Special Education
- Guidance
- Nurse
- STEM

7-8

- Language Arts/Reading
- Social Studies
- Science

7-12

- Industrial Tech
- Math (Math 7-8/a 4-9 license acceptable)
- Foreign Language
- Librarian (7-12 certificate/license required)
- Career Tech Programs (per Education and Training Technical Content Standards)
- Business/Computer

9-12

- Language Arts
- Science
- Social Studies

The following areas are subject only to interview process for entry into the following departments/assignments. Transfer provisions into the following are not applicable.

- Alternative School Program/s
- Psychologist
- Social Worker
- Dean
- Counselor
- Literacy Coaches
- Math Coaches
- Speech/Language Pathologist
- Curriculum Consultant
- Teaching Professions Career Tech Positions
- Occupational Therapist
- STEM Teacher
- Technology Integration Specialist
- Title 1 Teachers
- B. Positions filled after the first day of the school year shall be temporary for the rest of that school year and will be posted and/or available for reassignment/transfer for the following year.
- C. An employee-initiated transfer/reassignment may take place so long as it does not result in loss of employment by a current employee.
- D. Reassignment Done in the spring/summer of the year for the next school year.

Procedure for Reassignment -

- 1. Prior to the end of the school year, staff will be informed by principal or designee of proposed changes and currently available positions in the building/department for the next school year.
- 2. Interested staff members will have one (1) week to provide written input to the principal. Steps one and two will occur only one (1) time each year. Written input may be used for reassignment considerations at the K-6 level prior to the end of the first teacher work day, even if a teacher has transferred to another department or building.
- 3. Assignments and reassignments are administrative responsibilities on an annual basis. Challenges will be resolved on the basis of seniority unless the administration chooses to deny a reassignment on the basis of one or more of the following reasons: number of years the staff member has taught the subject, number of hours taken in the subject, or lack of recent training in the subject.
- 4. Should it be necessary to reduce sections/classes due to decline in enrollment/registration or financial restrictions, subject to licensure restrictions, the least senior (as defined in Section 11A) in the department will be reassigned or have to transfer unless a more senior employee volunteers. In the event the above conditions apply to an elementary building, the least senior in the building will be reassigned or have to transfer unless a more senior employee volunteers.
- 5. No vacancy will exist for purposes of transfer until all reassignments have taken place.
- E. Transfer Transfers for the following year will take place from April until the end of the first teacher work day. Any vacancy after that will be filled temporarily and posted the following year. (Pursuant to Sec. C.)
 - 1. The procedure for a teacher to initiate a transfer will be a written request to the director of human resources. All transfer requests will be void at the end of the first teacher work day. Requests may be made at any time.
 - 2. The teacher will receive a copy of the transfer request to verify receipt of said transfer request in the office of human resources.
 - 3. Vacancies that occur during the school year will be filled on a temporary basis (substitute teacher or contracted teacher) and will be posted as vacant at the end of that school year, if it is determined that the position still exists. The following positions may be filled by either a substitute contract or a full employment contract at any point during the school year: Occupational Therapist, School Psychologist, Speech Therapist, and School Nurses.
 - 4. Transfers will only be granted to the individuals that are considered highly qualified and properly licensed, in accordance with the state, at the time in which they submit their transfer request forms.
 - 5. Letters requesting transfers will be considered before any vacancy is filled by a new employee.
 - 6. Staff members will have one (1) week to apply for an existing vacancy after the date of posting.
 - 7. Teachers who have transfer requests on file may be interviewed for the posted position.
 - 8. Teachers who are transferred will be notified of the decision in writing for the next school year.
 - 9. The position will be filled on the basis of seniority unless the administration chooses to deny a transfer on the basis of one or more of the following reasons: number of years the staff member has taught the subject, number of hours taken in the subject, or lack of recent training in the subject.
 - 10. Should the principal find it necessary, due to loss of sections/classes, to transfer the least senior teacher, a conference will be held with the teacher and the teacher will be given reasons for the transfer. The teacher may have a representative at the conference.

- 11. In the event that a poor teaching situation arises because of a personality conflict or other pressure within a building, a teacher may be asked to transfer to another teaching assignment after conferences between the teacher, the immediate superior, the principal and an association representative have been held. The building principal will recommend to the superintendent/designee a transfer if all efforts to resolve the situation and/or seek an employee-initiated transfer have failed. If the superintendent/designee initiates a transfer, it will take precedence over seniority.
- F. Transfer Day The parties may, upon mutual agreement, waive certain of the foregoing procedures in order to permit transfers, postings, bidding on vacancies, and filling of vacancies to take place at a meeting of all affected and interested parties on a single day.

Transfer requests for positions K-8 will be null and void after the transfer day meeting. A teacher who continues to want a transfer on file for a position K-8 must submit a new request to the director of human resources.

Section 12 – Job Sharing

Upon request by two (2) or more members of the bargaining unit, consideration may be given to dividing a bargaining-unit position between those requesting it. The administration shall determine implementation and discontinuation of job-sharing positions.

Section 13 – State Teacher Licensure

It is the professional responsibility of the teaching staff to keep current on their licensure as defined by the state and the LPDC. If a staff member's licensure lapses, that staff member may be deemed unemployable by the district. Those positions may then be filled by a certificated person as defined by law.

ARTICLE 6 – Association

Section 1 – Inter-School Delivery Service

The Association will use the district pony service and teacher pony boxes and district email/intranet service for communication to teachers.

Section 2 – Inter-School Phones

Members of the Association may use inter-school telephones for Association business at all reasonable times, provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations.

Section 3 – Use of Building Equipment

The Association shall have the right to use school building equipment, including computer, duplicating equipment, calculating machines, and all types of audiovisual equipment at reasonable times, when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incident to such use.

Section 4 – Association Business During School Day

Duly authorized representatives of the Association and their respective affiliates shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt the normal teacher work day, provided further that the restriction of the foregoing proviso shall not apply to representation of bargaining unit members in proceedings in which a right to representation is provided by law or pursuant to this agreement.

Section 5 – Use of Buildings

The Association and its representatives shall have the right to use school buildings at all reasonable hours for meetings, provided that when special custodial service is required, the Board may make a reasonable charge therefore. No charge shall be made for use of school rooms before the commencement of the school day nor until 6:00 p.m. A building permit shall be secured for said use.

Section 6 – Association Bulletin Board

One bulletin board shall be provided by the Association solely for Association use in each faculty lounge in each building.

Section 7 – Association Identification

No teacher shall be prevented from displaying insignia, pins, clothing, or other identification of membership in the Association on his person or their mail box.

Section 8 – Recruitment and Selection of New Bargaining Unit Members

Every effort will be made to include TAWLS members in the recruitment, interviewing, and selection process for bargaining unit members.

Section 9 – New Teachers

The office of human resources shall send to the Association a list of names, addresses, and building assignment of new teachers prior to their orientation.

The Association shall have the right to invite new teachers to a meeting during the orientation time to explain the services of the Association.

Section 10 – Association Representative

A teacher may request the presence of the building representative or officer of the Association at a conference or meeting. When such a request is made, the conference will not be held until the Association president or designee is in attendance.

Exceptions to the above shall be:

- A. Evaluation conferences where only the evaluator and the teacher are present.
- B. Conferences in which only a child, parents or guardians, an administrator, and the teacher are present.

Conferences excepted under paragraphs A and B above are not intended to be disciplinary in nature. If disciplinary action is proposed to be taken as a result of matters discussed therein, the teacher may request and receive Association representation at a subsequent conference preceding the imposition of discipline and, if requested by the teacher not later than one (1) day following the initial conference, that conference shall be held not later than three (3) days following the initial conference. The content of evaluation documents and oral criticism not reduced to writing and placed in the teacher's personnel file in the form of a written warning shall not be considered disciplinary action within the meaning of this section. In the event that a Jeopardy Sheet is used in, or results from, an evaluation conference, a subsequent conference will be held upon request as provided above to discuss the content of the Jeopardy Sheet at which time Association representation may be present.

Conferences required by an administrator which remove a teacher from his/her duties involving sole supervision of students shall not occur unless arrangements are made by the administrator to supervise the students involved.

Section 11 – Association Leave

Each Association delegate and alternate to the Ohio Education Association (OEA) will be granted one (1) day of leave if needed, with pay, each school year. The number of delegates and alternates shall be determined by a ratio of one per every seventy-five (75) TAWLS' members.

The Board, through the superintendent/designee, may authorize Association members leave, with pay, for such matters that will advance the welfare of Washington Local Schools.

Section 12 – Association Facilities

The building principal will determine space in as private an area as possible for the Association president in his/her building. The Board will continue the practice of making a telephone extension (with no other phones on the same extension) available for the use of the Association president. A phone with caller identification will be provided in both the President's classroom and TAWLS space.

Section 13 – Items of Board Agenda

The Association may request that an item be placed on the agenda for a regular Board meeting. The Association president will submit a request for agenda items to the superintendent at least one (1) week before the meeting.

Section 14 – Addressing Board During Board Meetings

The Association will be given the opportunity to address any item on the agenda for a regular Board meeting during the item of Delegations and Communications.

Section 15 – Release Time

The president of TAWLS will be given a minimum of 450 minutes of release time per week during the school year as jointly determined by administrator and TAWLS president.

Section 16 – Compensation to Association Officers for Association Activities in Accordance with STRS Regulations

Upon written request of the Association, the following TAWLS officers shall be assigned to conduct Association business in addition to their regularly assigned duties. For these additional duties, the Board shall pay these employees an annual stipend in the amount established by the TAWLS Constitution and By-Laws, as a supplemental contract. The TAWLS President will notify the district's Treasurer/CFO prior to September 5 of each school year of the name of the officer and the amount of the stipend. One half (1/2) of this stipend shall be paid to the employees by January 15 and one half (1/2) shall be paid to the employees by May 15.

- President
- Vice Presidents
- Treasurer
- Secretaries

TAWLS shall reimburse the Board for the total cost of the stipends which includes STRS employer contributions, Medicare, and Worker's Compensation, and other required payroll taxes or contributions, upon invoicing received from the Board of Education.

The Association will hold the board harmless for its provision of compensation under this Section, and will accordingly defend and indemnify the Board for any loss or expense incurred, including reasonable attorney fees, arising from or connected with the Board's performance of its obligations under this Section.

Section 17 – Membership in the Association

Association membership shall be annual from September 1 through August 31. Once a member enrolls, the membership shall be continuous for each subsequent membership year unless the individual cancels his/her membership.

Any individual who wishes to cancel his/her membership must notify the Association's Treasurer and the Board's Treasurer in writing between August 1 and September 30. A member may cancel his/her membership outside the cancellation period, but he/she shall be responsible for any remaining dues for the current membership year via regularly scheduled payroll deductions.

ARTICLE 7 – Education Protection and Support

Section 1 – Safe Working Conditions

Every effort shall be made to provide teachers with safe working conditions. Should an unsafe working condition develop, the teacher should report said condition to the building principal for prompt investigation.

The Board recognizes the critical role teachers and administrators play in creating a safe and nurturing educational environment. High expectations for student behavior must be supported with appropriate opportunities for students to learn from the mistakes through support, counsel, and consequences that restore appropriate behavior. The PD Committee should annually seek resources to support educators in restorative practices.

Prior to the beginning of the school year, the administration and building leadership team of each school will develop school procedures for student behavior expectations.

It is the responsibility of each professional staff member to implement such procedures so as to provide an atmosphere for learning to take place.

It is recognized that, in developing responsible student conduct, the positive techniques such as counseling and guidance should take place over punitive disciplinary measures.

Section 3319.41 of the Ohio Revised Code states that a professional staff member or administrator may use such force as is reasonable and necessary to quell a disturbance threatening physical injury to others, to obtain possession of weapons or other dangerous objects upon the person or within the control of the pupils, for the purpose of self-defense, or for the protection of persons or property.

Neither the board nor the Association condones harassment for any reason and both agree to act together to prevent it occurrence. All cases of physical threat, violence, or harassment to members of the staff will be reported immediately to the principal. The principal shall investigate the report and will act upon accordingly based upon information gathered from the investigation.

At the staff member's discretion, the principal will notify the police. The involved staff member will complete an incident report and provide a copy to the principal. The principal will forward the report to the Superintendent. Any staff member who is assaulted will at their discretion be excused to seek a medical evaluation of the injuries.

Administrators and staff from each school will develop and implement a security/safety plan, which will be distributed and discussed at a staff meeting each year.

If the principal is absent for the whole day, a substitute will be provided either for the head teacher or principal.

Section 2 – Teacher Facilities

The Board will provide:

- A. A work room with good lighting, seating and work space, duplicating equipment, and a computer with access to printing will be available for staff use within the building when not in use for instructional purposes.
- B. Lunch area in a separate room designated for faculty use in each school.
- C. A desk and chair for each teacher. A desk and chair for each student as soon as reasonably available.
- D. Space will be provided where a teacher may store instructional materials, supplies, equipment, and coats.
- E. Separate rest rooms for staff and students will be designated in each building.
- F. Parking space at the school site as per past practice.
- G. Telephones to which staff has access in each building for purposes of confidential consultation with parents, staff, and other appropriate persons concerning school program matters.

A drawer, cupboard, filing cabinet or compartment capable of being locked to secure both personal belongings and sensitive board materials. Teachers will also be provided with a key to their classroom(s) and building(s) upon request to the building principal. Replacement key(s) will be at the teacher's expense.

Teachers will be permitted to have coffee makers/vendors, refrigerators, microwave ovens, and soft drink machines in areas designated for teacher use.

Section 3 – Planning Time

Planning time shall be provided to all teachers. This time shall be used to facilitate preparation of lessons and instructional materials. Conferences and communications essential to implementation of the instructional program shall be held during this time with students, parents, and school personnel. All planning time must be in blocks of no less than fifteen (15) minutes.

Reasonable efforts will be made to avoid morning meetings three (3) days before grade cards are due each quarter.

Planning time for Special Education educators will be scheduled with educator input.

Educators will provide input in scheduling of student/parent meetings.

Team Work Time

In the event that teachers are scheduled as teams, the specifics for the operations of the teams shall be discussed and mutually agreed upon with equal representation from the administration and TAWLS.

Alternative School Planning and Teacher Day

For alternative school proposals, planning/conference time and lunch shall be incorporated into student contact time. The teacher school day shall not exceed 7 hours and 15 minutes. Teachers shall be paid at the hourly contractual rate for Saturday make-up sessions.

Department Chair Release Time

All department chairs at the high school shall be granted a minimum of one (1) period of release time daily for the duration of this contract (2020-2021) in addition to the scheduled instructional planning time. This time will be used to address the needs of the department.

Section 4 – Scheduling of Assembly Programs

Principals will make every effort to schedule assembly programs so that they do not occur on the same day of the week and during the same block of time. This will minimize the possibility of any one teacher being deprived of planning time.

Section 5 – Supply Requisitions

All requisitions and/or requests for supplies must be made through the appropriate administrator and shall follow the procedure as outlined by the administration. Three (3) weeks after receipt of the requisition or request, the appropriate administrator shall respond to request for information concerning the status thereof from the person initiating the requisition or request.

Section 6 – Supplies/Materials

Supplies and/or materials determined necessary by the superintendent to implement Board adopted curriculum shall be provided by the Board.

Section 7 – Class/Subject/Room Assignment

Prior to April 1, all teachers will have an opportunity to provide input in writing to the building principal or department chairperson regarding their class/subject/room assignment and/or schedule for the following year.

Notification of tentative grade level/subject assignment and class course assignments will be given to each teacher by June 15 of each school year. If a change is made after August 1, the TAWLS member will be notified in writing and the TAWLS member will be compensated at the negotiated curriculum rate for up to ten (10) hours for curriculum work.

Every effort shall be made to ensure that no secondary teacher (7-12) shall be assigned more than three (3) different teaching preps.

Section 8 – Academic Freedom

The parties recognize and acknowledge the importance of academic freedom to all employees covered by this agreement circumscribed, however, by state and local policies, curriculum, instructional content, and methodology.

Teachers shall have the right to award an evaluation grade to students and will be notified and consulted if the assigned grade is considered for change. Teachers will not be required to change student grades. No student grades will be changed by principals without consulting with the teacher.

Promotion, retention, or placement of students will not require changing teacher grades.

Section 9 – Department Chair/Facilitator Evaluations

Department chairpersons and facilitators will be evaluated by the administration annually with members of the department having the opportunity for input. Principals will accept applications for department chair and facilitators positions from interested members of the department by March 1 of each year. This provision does not apply to elementary department chairpersons or head teachers.

Section 10 – Evaluation of Bargaining Unit Members

A joint evaluation committee shall be established with equal number of members appointed by the Association president and superintendent/designee. The evaluation committee will meet annually to identify and allocate percentages for student growth measures and approve the student growth measure (SLO) committees.

If HB 153's revisions of the Ohio Revised Code section 3319.17 are repealed, the evaluation system procedure set forth in the 2010 - 2013 Master Agreement shall apply, to the extent permitted by law.

A. Teachers

It is the intent of the Washington Local Board of Education to provide an ongoing teacher evaluation program to facilitate improvement of instruction. Criteria for teacher performance contained in the evaluation instrument shall be used as a basis for the evaluation of teaching performance.

Items considered unsatisfactory/ineffective must have an explanatory statement indicating the specific deficiency with suggestions for improvement. Items considered not applicable must have a statement of explanation. The evaluator is encouraged to comment on areas of strength demonstrated by the teacher. At the request of either the administrator or teacher, a pre-observation conference will be held. Anonymous information will not be part of the evaluation process.

An evaluation shall have at least two (2) formal observations of at least 30 minutes each. A conference will follow the formal classroom observation. A copy (rough or final) of the evaluation will be given to the teacher at least one (1) day in advance of the conference. However, if a mutually agreed upon time is reached between the evaluator and the teacher, a conference may be held earlier. Teachers may file a written response and/or rebuttal to the evaluation which shall become part of the evaluation instrument.

The original copy of the evaluation instrument shall be filed in the employee's Employment Record File located in the office of human resources. Copies shall also be given to the teacher and principal.

B. Nonteaching Bargaining Unit Members

The philosophy of each bargaining unit member shall be consistent with the philosophy established by the Board.

By the first week of October, the supervisor shall require that each employee to be evaluated submit a list of goals and objectives for the program to be administered. Goals and objectives shall be drafted in cooperation with the supervisor.

A conference shall be held for the purpose of measuring the bargaining unit member's progress toward attainment of the goals and effective performance of duties as included in the job description. A copy of the goals and objectives will be attached to the evaluation document and placed in the bargaining unit member's Employment Record File. A subjective statement by the supervisor shall be given to the bargaining unit member concerning the evaluation. The bargaining unit member shall sign the evaluation document and a copy shall be placed in his/her Employment Record File. The bargaining unit member may write an addendum which is to be attached to the evaluation document.

Deficiencies should be identified and corrective measures suggested by the supervisor. Additional evaluations may be made.

The original copy of the evaluation instrument shall be filed in the bargaining unit member's Employment Record File located in the office of human resources. Copies shall also be given to the bargaining unit member, supervisor, and/or principal.

C. Evaluation Schedule of Bargaining Unit Members (Teaching and Nonteaching)

All first-year bargaining unit members will be evaluated at least one (1) time during the first semester with a written report issued by February 1.

All other teachers shall be evaluated at least once (1) during the academic year.

The Board may evaluate each teacher who received a rating of accomplished on the teacher's most recent evaluation conducted under this section once (1) every three (3) school years, so long as the teacher's student academic growth measure, for the most recent school year for which data is available, is average or higher, as determined by the Department of Education.

The Board may evaluate each teacher who received a rating of skilled on the teacher's most recent evaluation conducted under this section once (1) every two (2) years, so long as the teacher's student academic growth measure, for the most recent school year for which data is available, is average or higher, as determined by the Department of Education.

Any teacher in jeopardy of nonrenewal will be given an evaluation by February 1 and a final evaluation by May 1. This final evaluation includes the previous observations and at least one (1) additional formal observation, for a minimum of three (3) formal observations during the school year.

Additional evaluations may be conducted when deemed necessary by administration. Teachers may request additional evaluations.

Evaluation process shall be completed by the employee's supervising administrator, or other mutually agreed upon administrator, by May 1 with written report by May 10.

D. Jeopardy Sheet

Should it be necessary to use a Jeopardy Sheet, the following procedures will be followed:

- 1. The Jeopardy Sheet is to be issued as soon as such deficiencies are apparent and re-employment is questioned.
- 2. Copies will be forwarded to the bargaining unit member, the office of human resource, and the Association president.
- 3. Only building principals will use the Jeopardy Sheet.

The Jeopardy Sheet currently in use will be retained unless changed by mutual agreement of both parties. A copy of the Jeopardy Sheet is attached as Appendix A.

Section 11 – Complimentary Passes to Athletic Events and Other School Functions

Upon presentation of a Washington Local Schools ID card, teachers will be accorded free general admission to athletic events and other student-participatory events for which admission fees are normally charged to the general public.

Section 12 – Charitable Contributions

Charitable contributions made by teachers shall be left to the individual's discretion, and no regulations as to specific donations shall be made by the administration of this district.

Section 13 – Leaving Building During Work Day

Teachers shall obtain permission to leave, or be absent from their positions during their regularly scheduled workday, from their building principals and/or designated representatives. Personnel not assigned to a given school building shall obtain permission from their immediate supervisors.

Teachers leaving the building during the lunch hour shall advise their immediate supervisors.

Section 14 – Travel Between Buildings

Persons required to travel between buildings will be allowed sufficient time to travel safely between the two buildings. This time shall not infringe upon duty free lunch time.

Travel time for art, vocal music and physical education specialists who move between elementary buildings and between an elementary building and the 7-12 campus will be a minimum of twenty (20) minutes.

Section 15 – Student Discipline

Board Policy 5500 related to student discipline will be distributed and discussed at a staff meeting each year. Each school will have a written plan in place outlining how student discipline will be handled. The plan will include procedures to be followed when there are discipline problems and the principal is out of the building.

Section 16 – Administering Prescription Medicine to Students

Individuals administering prescription medication to students will be Board approved and provided training which will include State law, Board policy, liability, procedures and appropriate documentation.

Bargaining unit members will not be required to administer medication. Exceptions would be school nurses and individuals holding extra duty positions which include assisting with the administration of prescription medication.

Section 17 – Art, Music, and PE, and STEM Specialists - Building Assignment

Only the request for a continuation of the primary building assignment for art, music and physical education will be honored. Secondary building assignments will be honored only to the extent that schedules allow.

Art, vocal music, and physical education and STEM specialists will have no more than three (3) different building assignments. Every effort will be made to have specialists in buildings in close proximity to each other. Whenever possible, specialists will not be shared between the elementary level and 7-12.

All full-time art, music, and PE specialists will have the right to claim one home/primary school assignment at a building that does not have a full-time art, music, and/or PE specialist designated as their home/primary school. Members must declare interest to their department chair by February 15 for the next school year. Seniority shall apply if there is more than one applicant.

Department chairs of Art, Music, and Physical Education and STEM will work collaboratively with three elementary principals to provide input for the development of the elementary specialist schedule.

Section 18 – Progressive Discipline

Employees may be disciplined or terminated for just cause only. An employee has the right to union representation throughout the disciplinary process. Disciplinary action taken by the employer under this provision may be contested under the grievance procedure. Progressive discipline shall be followed as appropriate. Normal progressive discipline is a verbal and written warning followed by a suspension of appropriate length, followed by termination. This is not appropriate in every case and the circumstances of each offense must be taken into account. For example, some offenses warrant immediate termination; in other cases, several warnings; or more than one suspension may be appropriate.

Section 19 – Security Video Technology

- A. If an employee is the subject of a video public records request, the employee will be notified in writing within 24 hours. Included in this notification will be the date and time of the video requested.
- B. Only upon teacher request shall cameras/videos be installed in a classroom.

ARTICLE 8 - Instructional Programs

Section 1 – Instructional Program

Every effort will be made to maintain a quality instructional program consistent with available financial resources.

Section 2 – Class Size

Every effort shall be made to maintain class size at an appropriate level to facilitate individualization of instruction. Consideration will be given to:

- Balancing class sizes
- Transferring students
- Hiring additional staff
- Assigning additional staff support

Due consideration will be given to adding an aide in the academic elementary classroom when the number of students in a K-3 class reaches 28, 4-6 class reaches 30 and if an academic secondary teacher's class load exceeds 150.

Elementary classroom aides assigned to support teachers with larger class assignments or to a specific special needs student must accompany these classes or students during art, vocal music, and physical education. If classroom aide support is available within a building, that aide could be assigned to an art, vocal music, or physical education class if the number of students in that special area class exceeds 30.

Upon request, the Association shall be given a list of the number of students assigned to each class.

Every effort will be made to balance the number of special education students assigned to art, vocal music, and physical education classes at a given elementary grade level.

Every effort shall be made that the elementary, junior high, and high school Intervention Specialist and Instructional Tutors shall serve no more than one-third (1/3) of IEP identified students in a single inclusion class.

Every effort shall be made that no more than one (1) special education class shall be combined for art, music, physical education and/or electives.

Section 3 – Parent Teacher Conference Days Family Contact Time

The Board and Association recognize the importance of ongoing communications with families and students throughout the school year. In an effort to enhance family communication, teachers will communicate with parents and guardians throughout each grading period using various communication methods (email, phone, face-to-face meetings, mailings, etc.) to build relationships and address any concerns raised by either party. These communications may take place during the contracted work day, outside of the contracted work day or during designated family contact time days.

There shall be three (3) family contact time days built into the school calendar days of parent teacher conferences for K-12 with two (2) one (1) days occurring in the first semester and one (1) two (2) days occurring in the second semester. The Friday before President's Day will be designated as a "flex" day for members who have completed and documented on a contact log shared electronically with their building administrator at least seven hours outside of the contracted work day communicating with families. The hours of conferences family contact time days will include both day and evening times to will be determined by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the TAWLS members in all grade levels.

A committee composed of equal representation of TAWLS (members to be selected by the Association President) and the Administration will be formed by the beginning of the 2020-2021 school year to examine the current parent teacher conference structure. Following the completion of the 2020-2021 school year, the committee will reconvene to evaluate the efficacy and format of parent teacher conferences and jointly determine future recommendations.

Section 4 – Grade Cards/Sheets

- A. Teachers, K-12, will be given three (3) working days, excluding holidays, to complete their grade cards/sheets at the end of the first three quarters. The deadline for fourth quarter grades will be determined by the building leadership team in each building. The earliest cut off for grades will be two (2) days prior to the last day of instruction.
- B. Teachers, 4-12, will be given ten (10) working days after an assignment is due to enter the assignment into the online grading system. Additional time may be approved by the building principal upon teacher request.

Section 5 – Summer School

Terms and conditions of employment for summer school, including posting of positions, shall be at the Board's discretion and shall be posted via district email.

Section 6 – Specialist Class Time – Elementary

In the event that there is to be a reduction in the total specialist time, the administration will meet and confer with the union prior to effecting such reduction.

Art, music, and physical education shall have a minimum of 160 minutes total per week.

All day/Every Day shall have a minimum of 100 minutes per week of specialist time.

It is recognized that STEM Programs will be added to the elementary schedule beginning in the Fall of the 2021-22 school year.

Art specialists whose primary assignment is at the elementary level will have one (1) assignable period per week as display time. If mutually agreed upon by the art specialist and Director of Curriculum, an additional class may be assigned during the display time at the hourly rate.

Section 7 – School Calendar

The school calendar shall be 186 days with students in attendance for 181 days.

Of the 186 days.

- 5 days will be considered (K-12) Teacher Work Days.
- 3.5 Professional Development
- 3 days Family Contact Time.
- 2 days Staggered Start.

For all K-12 teachers, one (1) teacher work day shall be prior to the start of school and the remaining four (4) days shall be after the conclusion of each quarter.

For all K-12 teachers, no mandatory in service/meetings will be held on the remaining four (4) quarterly work days.

On the final teacher workday, teachers who have completed their required tasks may leave after they have completed check-out procedures with their administrator. A sign-up sheet will be posted for 10-minute check-out appointment times no later than the first week of the fourth quarter.

A committee will be formed with equal representation from TAWLS, OAPSE, and the administration to develop recommend three (3) two (2) choices of calendars for the next three (3) school years. These choices will be voted upon by TAWLS and OAPSE. It is understood that the recommendation is subject to Board approval.

Section 8 – Kindergarten Programming

A joint committee with equal members from TAWLS and Administration will be formed to study current kindergarten programming.

ARTICLE 9 – Training and Staff Development

Section 1 – Building Collaboration

A building collaboration plan will be developed by each school's building committee or other group agreed to by building teachers and administrators.

Each plan must include an explanation of the collaboration plan developed by each school, the specific need for collaboration time for the individual school, the framework of the plan, the expected outcome, the method used to evaluate effectiveness, and a budget.

Once workshop and conference funds are exhausted in a building the Assistant Superintendent has the discretion to approve additional professional days for bargaining unit members.

The building leadership team or other group agreed to by building teachers and administrators, will decide which building initiatives will be undertaken for the four (4) late student arrivals (2 hours each). In the event of a calamity day, the late arrival will be rescheduled.

Section 2 – Professional Development

Four late student arrivals (2 hours each) will be provided for professional development.

There will be a minimum of one (1), two hour delay during the first quarter to be used to complete required SAFE School Training.

The remaining three (3) two hour delays will be utilized for Teacher Based Team development or will be determined by Building Leadership Teams based upon student needs.

Two (2) additional Three and one-half (3½) days will be provided for SAFE School Training and professional development. These professional development days will be conducted on election days on the dates set forth by the State for elections in November and in March or May and one and one-half (1½) days will be provided for prior to the start of the school year.

A professional development committee of ten (10) individuals shall be composed of equal representation of TAWLS members (selected by the Association President) and members of the Administration will be formed to

develop topics for teacher professional development days to help ensure a quality education for all students and to support District goals.

A minimum of twenty-five thousand dollars shall be designated for teacher professional development opportunities.

TAWLS will provide input into district level professional development opportunities.

Section 3 – Tuition Benefits

A teacher will be eligible to receive reimbursement each school year to offset the cost of graduate college courses which will enhance his or her career in education. The district tuition reimbursement fund is capped at:

<u>2021-2022</u>	<u>2022-2023</u>	<u>2023-2024</u>
\$65,000	\$65,000	\$65,000

The tuition will be calculated for completion of course work with a grade of C or better using the following formula:

Tuition reimbursement fund divided by total number of credit hours (quarter hours or equivalent) will equal the tuition reimbursement per credit hour paid to an individual. The benefit paid will not exceed the actual tuition costs, and attendance must be at a state accredited institution.

Teachers will submit paid tuition receipts and grades of the previous academic year by September 15 to the designated TAWLS representative (who will receive \$600 from the district reimbursement fund). The representative will make the necessary calculation for reimbursement. Reimbursement checks will be issued by October 31 from the district reimbursement fund.

Section 4 - Professional Learning Day/Teacher Work Day

For all K-12 teachers, no mandatory in service/meetings will be held on the remaining four (4) quarterly work days.

One teacher work day, one professional learning day planned in collaboration with the professional development committee, and one half day set aside for district and building meetings will be planned for the start of the school year.

On the final teacher workday, teachers who completed their required tasks may leave after they have completed check-out procedures with their administrator. A sign-up sheet will be posted for 10-minute check-out appointment times no later than the first week of the fourth quarter.

Section 5 – Professional Support

Professional support will be provided for bargaining unit members through the Resident Educator Program and a Peer Assistance Collaborative Experience (PACE).

A Governing Board will be established to determine guidelines and procedures for these programs. A fund of \$10,000 per year will be allocated to support the training and professional development of mentors and consulting teachers for the support programs.

A. Governing Board

A Governing Board will be established to determine guidelines, procedures and monitoring for the

professional support programs.

Membership

The Governing Board shall consist of the TAWLS president and the superintendent/designee along with six (6) additional members with equal representation from TAWLS and administration.

Term of office

Each Governing Board member shall serve a two-year (2) term with the possibility of renewal or extension up to a maximum of three (3) terms.

Governing Board roles and responsibilities

Determine operational and management procedures for the Entry Year and PACE programs.

Select Mentors and Consulting Teachers based upon defined criteria for each program.

Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of Mentors and Consulting Teachers and make recommendations regarding their continuation in the programs.

Further develop, implement and evaluate guidelines for classroom observations, conferences, training and professional development.

Review and act upon participant referrals.

Meetings

The Governing Board shall meet monthly or on an as needed basis and be paid at the hourly rate of \$26.99/hour.

B. Resident Educator Mentor Program

A mentor will be assigned to individuals who are in the first year of employment under a teaching or educational personnel license.

Observations and feedback given by mentoring teachers are non-evaluative and will not become part of any teacher file or teacher evaluation.

C. Peer Assistance and Collaborative Experience (PACE)

Self-referred participants

An experienced teacher beyond the first year of teaching, who is encountering teaching performance problems or seeks to improve his or her teaching skills, may request to be assigned a consulting teacher.

It is expressly understood that the purpose of such participation is to provide peer assistance. The consulting teacher will play no role in the evaluation of the teacher's performance.

Length of voluntary participation in PACE will be determined under adopted guidelines and the Governing Board.

Referred participants

Referred participants are teachers identified through evidence of unsatisfactory/ineffective performance on

the evaluation document.

The appropriate administrator/supervisor will complete a PACE referral form. The administrator, participant, and the consulting teacher will jointly develop an intervention plan for the referred participant.

Change of status from self-referred to referred participant

If a self-referred participant becomes a referred participant through an evaluation document, self-referred status ceases.

Confidentiality

Communication between a participant and a consulting teacher is confidential and will not be used by any party in arbitration or any other proceeding involving the teaching performance of the participant.

This does not include the Intervention Plan developed jointly by the administrator, participant and consulting teacher.

D. Instructor/Proficiency Tutor

An advisor will be assigned to individuals who are in the first year of employment as an instructor tutor or proficiency tutor. The advisor shall receive a stipend of \$100.00 for the school year.

Section 6 – Peer Shadowing

Peer shadowing will be provided for teachers with administrative approval on a limited basis.

Section 7 – National Board-Certified Teachers/Master Teacher

The Board will provide two (2) days of professional leave to teachers requesting release time for preparation for National Board Certification/Master Teacher.

Section 8 – Special Education

A committee composed of equal representation of TAWLS members and Administration, which may include a Board representative, will be formed during the first quarter of the 2020-2021 school year to examine the current special education model utilized in Washington Local Schools. The committee will work collaboratively to assess the WLS special education program's efficacy, district needs and make recommendations to be shared with the Superintendent, Student Services, and the Washington Local Board.

IEP and ETR Meetings

A student's special education teacher, support personnel, and regular education teacher(s) will participate in reevaluation team meetings and/or annual reviews of a student's individualized education plan. Meetings held outside of the contractual work day will be compensated at the negotiated hourly rate.

Special Education Teaching Assignment

Every effort shall be made to ensure that the Intervention Specialists and Instructional Tutors will not be assigned to work with more than three (3) grade levels to provide optimal services to the identified students.

Every effort shall be made to ensure that the 7-12 Intervention Specialists and Instructional Tutors shall not be assigned courses in more than two (2) academic departments.

Every effort shall be made to ensure that K-12 Intervention Specialists and Instructional Tutors have daily contact time with assigned caseload students.

Special Education Release Time

Intervention Specialists and Instructional Tutors (K-12) shall be provided twenty-five (25) hours of either release time and/or hourly compensation at the negotiated hourly curriculum rate.

Current Intervention Specialists who are receiving a \$2,680.00 stipend during the 2019-2020 school year, shall continue to receive such stipend provided that such bargaining unit members shall not be eligible for the twenty-five (25) hour of release time or hourly compensation described above.

The maximum number of Instructional Tutors hired by WLS for the 2021-2022 school year will not exceed thirteen (13), for the 2022-2023 school year eleven (11), and for the 2023-2024 school year nine (9).

Section 9 – Curriculum Initiatives

Teachers will be invited to participate on all district curriculum initiatives.

ARTICLE 10 – Attendance

Section 1 – Teachers School Day

All teachers will remain for scheduled obligations and are expected to plan their personal business outside the regular working day.

The working day for all TAWLS members shall include a 30-minute duty free lunch to align with ORC.3319.072.

Any proposed permanent changes to the structure of the working day shall be discussed before implementation by a committee that includes equal representation from TAWLS and administration. TAWLS committee members shall be selected by the Association president of interested members.

All new/proposed elementary and secondary daily schedules that involve a change in class periods and/or passing time shall be discussed before implementation with equal representation from TAWLS and the administration. TAWLS committee members shall be selected by the Association president of interested members.

The working day for elementary will be 8:00 a.m. to 3:15 3:30 p.m. and for junior high will be 7:20 a.m. to 2:50 p.m. and senior high schools will be 7:30 7:15 a.m. to 2:45 p.m. with a flexibility of 25 15 minutes either way for beginning and ending times, not to exceed a 7-hour, 15 30-minute day. Employees will begin to escort/monitor students at 3:12 p.m. for the elementary and 2:57 p.m. for the junior high schools for the safety and security of students at dismissal time.

Section 2 – Grade Level/Departmental Meetings Attendance Regulations

Elementary grade level and secondary departmental meetings are held in the various schools throughout the school year.

It is expected that every teacher will be present at the meetings appropriate to his/her position.

Three (3) hours of K-6 Teacher Based Team grade level meetings will be held per year at each building. Meeting length and schedule may vary based upon team needs. Departmental meetings 7-12 and specialty-area meetings will not occur more than once (1) per month and should be planned to be no longer than one (1) hour in length.

Section 3 – Faculty Meetings Attendance Regulations

The first Monday of each month for junior and senior high schools and the first Tuesday of each month for elementary schools have been designated faculty meeting day for each building in this system. This will enable teachers to set aside this day each month throughout the school year. The meeting day in each building may be

changed to a different day within the first week of the month by a majority vote of the staff determined at the first staff meeting, with the concurrence of the building principal.

Teachers are expected to attend all such designated staff meetings, and should not plan other engagements for these days. Principals shall prepare an agenda for each teacher which will include items to be covered in the meeting. Such agenda shall be given to all teachers a minimum of three (3) hours before said meetings. These meetings are to be limited to not more than one (1) hour. Teachers are expected to stay for the entire meeting.

Section 4 – Attendance on Calamity or Emergency Days

Teachers will not be required to report to work when the schools are closed for the entire day due to extreme weather or undue emergency. On days when school opening is delayed, all personnel may report the equivalent of the delay after their regularly scheduled start time. In the event of a delayed opening of schools, all children reporting at other than the delayed time shall be admitted to the schools. On a day when one or more buildings are closed due to a non-weather emergency, administration shall issue guidelines for teacher attendance.

An individual on an approved paid leave, sick leave, personal leave, or funeral leave when a calamity/emergency day occurs will not be charged time from his/her eligible leave, and further, will not be docked for that day's pay.

When schools in the district are cancelled after a delayed opening, the principal may permit the staff to remain to work in the building.

After the tenth canceled day, a plan will be developed by a committee of equal representation between TAWLS and the Administration on whether to make up lost instructional time. If the plan includes additional time, that time shall be worked without additional compensation.

After the fifth weather-related calamity day, remote schedules for instruction will be followed.

A remote learning schedule for instruction will be jointly developed by a committee of equal representation between TAWLS and Administration to be followed after the fifth weather-related calamity day.

If the amount of instructional time falls below the state minimum due to calamity time, that time will be required to be made up. Said time shall be scheduled after consultation with the Association.

Section 5 – Open House

Certificated staff are expected to attend one (1) open house per year. Subject to the approval of the administration, each building will determine what constitutes Open House and when Open House will occur in coordination with the Building Leadership Team and the District Leadership Team. The designated open house day will be flexed to accommodate a 7.5-hour workday.

ARTICLE 11 - Leaves and Absences

Section 1 – Sick Leave

All full- and part-time bargaining unit members, who work according to the regular school calendar as adopted by the Board, shall earn fifteen (15) days of sick leave annually. Sick leave will be earned at the rate of one and one-fourth (1½) days per month of completed service. The school year for accrual of sick leave shall commence on the first teacher work day of the school year and shall end on the day preceding the first teacher work day of the following school year. Sick leave shall commence accrual for bargaining unit members commencing employment other than at the commencement of a school year in the first month in which they shall have completed the greater of ten (10) working days or one-half (1/2) of the scheduled working days for the month. There will not be any limit to the amount of sick days that are accumulated. Accumulated sick leave is printed on the check stub.

Sick leave shall be paid for absences due to the following:

- A. Personal Illness Employees absent for more than ten (10) consecutive days, due to personal illness, may be asked to provide the Office of Human Resources with a doctor's statement verifying the dates the employee was unable to work and the date the employee is able to return to work.
- B. Personal injury.
- C. Quarantine.
- D. Illness in the family including father, mother, brother, sister, husband, wife, children, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, or a relative living in the same household as the employee.

New employees to the system and bargaining unit members returning to active service who have exhausted all accumulated sick leave will be credited with an advancement of five (5) days sick leave at the beginning of the first year of service after they have completed five (5) working days. That advancement will be charged against the sick leave they subsequently accumulate under this provision and they will not be eligible for additional sick leave until such time as their period of service has entitled them to more.

All employees entering the Washington Local School System shall be entitled to sick leave credit previously earned from public service within the State of Ohio, provided such credit is substantiated by written statement from previous employer.

Employees returning to service of the Washington Local School System after a separation from such public service shall be granted previous accumulated sick leave which shall be placed to the employee's credit upon his/her reemployment in the public schools.

Sick leave credited from previous employment shall not exceed the cumulative total of above.

Section 2 – Funeral Leave

An absence of up to five (5) work days shall be granted to employees who have a death in the immediate family including mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, brother/sister-in-law, mother/father-in-law, daughter/son-in-law, sister, brother, husband, wife, child, grandchild, or anyone who has virtually held the position of parent or child or anyone who is a permanent member of the household of the staff member.

An absence of up to three (3) work days shall be granted to employees who have a death in the extended family which includes aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, guardian, or a person whose legal residence is in the same household of an extended family member.

Employees attending the funeral of others not in the immediate or extended family as above defined shall be granted absence for the day of the funeral.

The Board, through the superintendent/designee, may authorize additional funeral leave. Any days taken for funeral leave will be deducted from the number of sick leave days accumulated by the employee.

Section 3 – Leave of Absence

An employee who has completed a minimum of two (2) school years of full-time employment in the Washington Local Schools and who has the permission of the Board is entitled to take a leave of absence without pay for up to twenty-four (24) months, subject to the following restrictions:

Applications for a leave of absence must be submitted in writing to the director of human resources of schools; the duration of the leave shall not exceed twenty-four (24) calendar months; the leave

shall terminate at the end of a school year (June 30) and shall be contingent upon the availability of qualified replacement, if needed. Should the initial grant be for less than two (2) years, an extension may be applied for by April 1 prior to the termination of the leave. In no case may the total time of the original leave plus the extended leave exceed twenty-four (24) calendar months. The Board of Education is not required to grant an extension of a leave of absence.

The contractual status of any employee on a leave of absence who is on a continuing contract shall not be affected adversely by such a leave of absence. While on leave of absence, employees will not receive sick leave credit, experience credit on the salary schedule, or salary remuneration.

A bargaining unit member who returns from a requested leave of a semester or less will be returned to his original school and assignment. A bargaining unit member returning from a leave longer than a semester should expect to return to a position of comparable status similar to, but not necessarily the same one he left. However, if organization does not permit the staff member to be assigned to the same or comparable position, he may then be assigned to some other position for which he is qualified.

It shall be left to the discretion of the superintendent/designee whether an employee on leave may return earlier than the specified time to full or part-time employment.

An employee on a leave of absence shall notify the director of human resources of schools in writing by April 1, prior to the termination of the leave, as to his desire to return to employment or resign. Failure to respond by April 1 will be construed as a resignation.

Section 4 – Maternity, Paternity, or Adoption Leave

The Washington Local Board of Education may grant a leave of absence for maternity or adoption, without pay, to any full-time employee upon written request to the director of human resources for such leave, accompanying the proper written certification of pregnancy or adoption.

A maternity leave may be granted for a period of time not to exceed twenty-four (24) calendar months, but must terminate at the end of a semester.

Should the initial grant be for less than twenty-four (24) calendar months, an extension may be applied for by December 1 if extension from first semester leave of absence or April 1 if extension from second semester. The Board of Education is not required to grant an extension of a leave of absence. Failure to respond by the December 1 or April 1 dates will be construed to be a resignation. In no case may the total time of the original leave plus the extended leave exceed twenty-four (24) calendar months.

The teacher may apply to the maternity leave accumulated sick leave during any portion of the maternity leave for which her physician certifies her physically incapable of performing her duties by reason of pregnancy or any other disabling illness or injury incurred during the maternity leave.

A doctor's statement attesting to the physical ability to perform normal duties may be required at the discretion of the director of human resources. It shall be left to the discretion of the superintendent/designee whether an employee on leave may return earlier than the specified time to full or part-time employment.

A bargaining unit member who returns from a requested leave of a semester or less will be returned to her original school and assignment. The semester may include sick leave, maternity leave, or a combination thereof. A bargaining unit member returning from a leave longer than a semester should expect to return to a position of comparable status similar to, but not necessarily the same one she left. However, if organization does not permit the staff member to be assigned to the same or comparable position, the member may then be assigned to some other position for which the member is qualified.

An employee on leave shall notify the director of human resources, in writing, by December 1 if returning from

a first semester leave of absence or April 1 if returning from a second semester leave of absence as to her desire to return to employment or to resign. Failure to respond by the December 1 or April 1 dates will be construed a resignation.

The contractual status for an employee on maternity leave or adoption leave shall not be affected adversely by any such leave of absence. While on leave, the employee will not receive sick leave credit or experience credit on the salary schedule.

When a family adopts a child, the adopting employee will be granted the same leave privileges as a natural parent. In the event of an adoption, every consideration shall be made to expedite his/her leave.

Paternity leave may be granted, if requested, to a full-time employee according to guidelines as set forth in the Maternity or Adoption Leave of Absence.

Section 5 – Military Leave

Military leave shall be granted pursuant to provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and applicable federal statutes.

Section 6 – Sabbatical Leave

A public-school teacher of Washington Local Schools who has completed five (5) years of service, three (3) of which are consecutive years in Washington Local School District immediately preceding the leave may, with the permission of the Board of Education and the superintendent/designee, be entitled to take a leave of absence with part pay for one (1) or two (2) semesters, subject to the following restrictions:

The teacher shall present to the superintendent/designee for approval a plan for professional growth prior to such a grant of permission, and at the conclusion of the leave provide evidence that the plan was followed. The teacher shall be required to return to the district at the end of the leave for a period of one (1) year for each semester of leave.

The Board of Education may not grant such a leave unless there is available a satisfactory substitute, nor grant such leaves to more than five percent (5%) of the professional staff at any one time, nor grant a leave longer than one (1) school year, nor grant a leave to any teacher more than once (1) for each five (5) years of service, nor grant a leave a second time to the same individual when other members of the staff have filed a request for such a leave.

The teacher shall be paid the difference between the substitute's salary and the regular teacher's expected base salary.

A teacher returning from sabbatical leave will be assured a teaching position in the Washington Local School System, and every attempt shall be made to place said teacher in the teaching position of his/her choice for which he/she is qualified by licensure.

A request for the position must be submitted in writing to the superintendent/designee by the second Monday of April.

Section 7 – Personal Leave

Each full-time employee of the Washington Local School System will be entitled to three (3) personal leave days per school year.

Employees wishing to take personal leave shall notify the building principal and record the absence in Aesop at the earliest possible date. In case of emergency, employees should immediately record the absence in Aesop or, if it is too late for them to do so, they should immediately report the absence to the substitute office.

No personal leave day, nor any portion thereof, will be granted on the day immediately prior to or following a school holiday or vacation. The Director of Human Resources may grant an exception to this restriction if written request is made to the Director of Human Resources explaining the situation when the need for the leave day before or after the holiday or vacation is due to circumstances beyond the control of the employee. The member may appeal a denial of leave to the Superintendent.

For purposes of determining eligibility for personal leave, a full-time employee shall be defined as one who is regularly employed in the Washington Local School System each scheduled working day, for either the school calendar year or the regular calendar year, regardless of the number of hours employed per day.

Unused days shall be compensated at \$135 per day, payable first pay in July unless dispersed by one of the following two (2) options. If compensation is not elected, the employee must notify the Treasurer by June 1 in writing as to which of the following options is selected:

- A. Banked into the employee's sick leave.
- B. Up to two (2) unused personal leave days per contractual year may be banked up to a maximum of five (5) total days in the personal leave bank.

Personal leave cannot be used for more than three (3) consecutive work days unless approved by Human Resources.

Section 8 – Special Leave

The Board, through the superintendent/designee, may authorize Association members leave with pay for such matters that will advance the welfare of Washington Local Schools. Such leave shall not be used for court appearances, participation in grievance hearings or other matters in which the Association is an adversary to the Board provided, however, that such leave may be used for hearings conducted pursuant to Chapter 4117, Ohio Revised Code, in which the Association member is a party and for Level III arbitration hearings conducted pursuant to ARTICLE 3 of this agreement.

Section 9 – Assault Leave

Notwithstanding the provision of Section 3319.141 of the Ohio Revised Code, the employer will grant assault leave to an employee absent due to physical disability resulting from assault under the following conditions:

An employee who is absent due to disability resulting from a physical attack or assault upon said employee which assault occurs on Board premises or while in attendance at an official school function and in the course of said employee's employment shall, subject to the approval of the superintendent/designee, using the conditions described below, be granted up to twenty (20) working days assault leave. The period of such absence, as defined in this provision, shall be termed "assault leave." During such assault leave, said employee shall be maintained on full-pay basis.

Assault, as per ORC 2903.13 is defined as:

- A. A person knowingly causing or attempting to cause physical harm to someone OR –
- B. A person recklessly causing serious physical harm to someone

In the case of an assault on a TAWLS member, the member will be informed that they may notify the building representative or TAWLS president of the assault. All assaults of staff members by students or other staff members must be reported to the building principal or designee.

If an employee becomes permanently disabled due to an assault the employee shall apply for disability retirement and no assault leave shall be granted after such retirement has been approved.

The following information must be provided to the superintendent/designee in order to be considered for assault leave:

- A. A signed, written statement describing the circumstances and events surrounding the assault and the cause thereof, including the location and time of the assault, and the names and addresses of participants, victims, and witnesses to the extent available.
- B. A signed, written statement from a licensed physician stating the nature and duration of the disability and the necessity of absences from regular employment.
- C. A signed, written statement of the employee's intent to file criminal assault charges, or if not, a written statement of the reasons for not doing so.

Falsification of either the written, signed statement of the events or circumstances surrounding the assault, or the physician's statement, shall be grounds for suspension or termination of employment under §3319.16, O.R.C.

Assault leave, which is approved by the superintendent/designee, shall not be charged against sick leave earned or earnable by the employee on leave granted under regulations adopted by the Board pursuant to §3319.08, O.R.C., or any other leave to which the employee is entitled. Assault leave benefits shall not be paid concurrently with Workmen's Compensation wage benefits. The Board shall reimburse an employee whose personal effects are damaged or destroyed as a result of an assault hereunder to the extent not otherwise reimbursed from any other source but not to exceed the total sum of \$200.00.

In the event of assault resulting in more than twenty (20) days of lost time involving an employee, the Board, through the superintendent/designee, may authorize additional days of assault leave.

Section 10 – Jury Duty Leave or Required Appearance Before State Employment Relations Board

An employee appointed to jury duty or required to appear at a hearing conducted by or on behalf of the State.

Employment Relations Board pursuant to Chapter 4117, Ohio Revised Code, during the employee's standard weekly work schedule shall be excused from such absence and shall be paid for such absence without deduction from sick leave or personal leave days.

It is understood the employee may retain monies received from the clerk of courts for their jury duty. The employee must provide a copy of the summons or jury check stub to the treasurer's office for verification of days absent.

Section 11 – Sick Leave Pool

The parties agree to create a sick leave pool for employees covered under this contract.

Employees who wish to access this sick leave pool must inform the director of human resources and the TAWLS' President of the need for additional sick leave days.

The sick leave pool may only be used for:

- Catastrophic injury -OR-
- Catastrophic illness of the employee, employee's spouse or the employee's dependent child that causes extended absence from work as documented by a physician.

Catastrophic, for purposes of this section, shall mean an illness or injury that is a severe condition or combination of conditions affecting the mental or physical health of the employee, employee's spouse or an employee's

dependent child that requires the services of a licensed practitioner for a prolonged period of time and that forces the employee to exhaust all leave time earned by that employee and to lose compensation from the District. Such conditions typically require prolonged hospitalization or recovery or are expected to result in disability or death.

A severe condition or combination of conditions is:

- a medically verified, life-threatening injury or illness; or
- a medically verified, debilitating injury or illness of an extreme magnitude.

Examples of illnesses/injuries generally considered severe enough to be catastrophic include but are not limited to:

- stroke with residual paralysis or weakness;
- severe heart attack;
- major surgery (for example, heart bypass surgery);
- cancer-related surgery or treatments;
- potentially fatal tumors; or
- amputations.

Employees with five (5) years of service must make an application for STRS disability during the first thirty (30) days of use of the sick leave pool if used for the employee's own injury or illness. Failure or refusal to make an application for STRS disability within thirty (30) days of the first day of the draw will result in loss of the privilege of using the sick leave pool beyond the initial thirty (30) days. The employee may continue to use the sick leave pool until the STRS disability decision is rendered. If application for STRS disability is denied, the employee may continue to use the sick leave pool.

If disability is approved under STRS, the employee will not be eligible to continue the use of the sick leave pool and will be required to reimburse the district for compensation received following the effective date of disability.

If additional days are needed after an employee has exhausted all accumulated sick leave including the five (5) advanced days, the employee may request additional days from other employees in order to resolve the employee's medical problems. The maximum number of days an employee will be allowed to apply for is the remainder of the school year.

Employees will not earn additional sick leave days while using days from the sick leave pool. Employees using days from the sick leave pool shall be paid their per diem rate not to exceed \$225.

Upon receiving a request for days from the sick leave pool, the TAWLS' President shall distribute a notice to employees. An employee wishing to transfer sick leave days to another bargaining-unit member shall submit the appropriate form to the TAWLS' President who will forward the appropriate information to the Treasurer.

Employees volunteering to transfer sick leave days shall:

- 1. Not deplete their sick leave accumulation below one-hundred-twenty (120) days.
- 2. Transfer up to a maximum of ten (10) days and a minimum of four (4) days per request.
- 3. Have the number of transferred days subtracted from their accumulation of sick leave.

ARTICLE 12 – Policy

Section 1 – Policy Committee

The administration and the Association shall each have one (1) vote on the Policy Committee whose purpose shall be to provide input to the Board concerning the adoption of new policies or revisions of existing policies that affect teachers in their assigned duties, but which are not part of the existing contract between the Board and the Association or in conflict with said contract. Policies so pertaining may be brought to the Policy Committee for discussion and study by either TAWLS or administration. Prior approval by the Board is not necessary for policies to be placed on the agenda of the Policy Committee or for discussion on said policies.

Policies will be recommended to the Board by the affirmative vote of both the Association and the administration. The Board reserves the right to adopt and/or revise any policies that affect teachers in their assigned duties, but which are not part of the existing contract between the Board and the Association or in conflict with said contract, thirty (30) days after a vote by the Policy Committee. If a vote is requested by either side, a vote must take place within ten (10) days.

The chairperson and vice chairperson shall be rotated every year. It shall be the obligation of the chairperson to assure that full discussion of all points of view are permitted in an orderly manner. Official minutes shall include actions taken and shall be subject to approval by both the chairperson and vice chairperson.

Section 2 – Policy Book

The Board policies shall be available to all employees online. However, the official copy of the Board's policy book will be on file in the superintendent's office. Members of the policy committee will receive copies of proposed changes and final changes.

ARTICLE 13 – Pav Procedures

Section 1 – Pay Schedule

Certificated teachers will be paid their base salary in twenty-six (26) equal installments. In fiscal years having twenty-seven (27) pay dates, there will be a three (3) week pay adjustment during the contractual year of that fiscal year. (See Appendix C - Schedule of Pay Dates.)

Section 2 – Extra Duty Pay Procedures

At the time a supplemental contract is signed the employee shall elect whether payment for extracurricular responsibilities will be divided equally into each regular check, or whether payment for extracurricular activities will be made upon completion of the work verified by the appropriate administrator who will be identified on the supplemental contract. The lump sum payment option will be according to the following schedule:

1st pay in December – activities completed by November 30 Pay cheerleader advisors for fall season

1st pay in April – activities completed by March 30 Pay cheerleader advisors for winter season

1st pay in June – activities completed by end of school year

Unless the treasurer's office is notified otherwise in writing by August 1, extra duty compensation will be paid in one lump sum.

Section 3 – Pay for Extra Class Assignment

A teacher will receive compensation when required to give up his/her only planning period to teach an additional class and work one (1) additional period during the school day. This class assignment must cover the entire term at the high school and the entire year at the junior high.

Compensation will be calculated by multiplying the teacher's designated annual salary by the following fractions:

- High School: One-tenth (1/10) per term for a block class and one-seventh (1/7) per term for period classes
- Junior High: One-seventh (1/7) per year

Section 4 – Pay for Student Supervisory Assignment

Teachers accepting student supervisory assignments during their planning periods will be paid at the hourly rate of \$17.06/hour for 2021-2022; \$17.40/hour for 2022-2023; \$17.75/hour for 2023-2024.

Section 5 – Extra Class Assignment Resulting from Teacher Absences

In the event a substitute cannot be obtained, teachers required to teach classes during their planning periods will be paid at the hourly rate of \$28.64/hour for 2021-2022; \$29.21/hour for 2022-2023; \$29.79/hour for 2023-2024.

Section 6 – Payroll Deductions

The Board, through the treasurer's office, will provide for the following deductions:

- Dues for membership in the Association and its affiliate organizations.
- Tax-Sheltered Annuities (Board approved companies).
- Washington National Insurance.
- United Way.
- United States Savings Bonds.
- Education Marketing Group.
- Citizens School Advisory Committee (CSAC).
- EPAC Fund for Children and Public Education (FCPE).
- North West Federal Credit Union Sun Federal Credit Union.
- American Vocational Association/Ohio Vocational Association.
- Deductions requested in writing by nine (9) or more employees.
- Dues for fair share fee payers shall be done in the manner prescribed in ARTICLE 1, Section 4.
- 125 Plan.
- Community Shares.
- Washington Local Schools Foundation.

The above deductions will be averaged in equal amounts throughout the remaining pays in the contractual year. Upon receipt of written notification to treasurer, payroll deduction will begin by the next calendar month.

Additional deductions must be authorized by the Board.

The Employer agrees to deduct from the wages of any employee-member of the Association, the dues, initiation fees and assessment of the Union, upon presentation of a written deduction authorization from any member of the Association. This deduction shall be without cost to the Association or the member.

Deductions of the annual dues and assessments will be made in as nearly equal pay period installments during the school year and in an amount determined by the Union. Deductions shall begin with the first pay period in October and continue until the end of the school year.

All monies deducted for such purposes shall be transmitted to the Union not more than five (5) business days following the collection via check or electronic transfer to an account designated by the Association.

A member who wishes to cancel payroll deduction of dues may do so by notifying the Association President and District Treasurer, in writing, not less than two (2) weeks prior to the effective date of the payroll change.

Section 7 – Curriculum Work

Teachers providing curriculum work for the district outside of regular school hours and with prior Curriculum Director approval shall be paid \$27.12/hour for 2021-2022; \$27.66/hour for 2022-2023; \$28.21/hour for 2023-2024. This does not include detention or teacher training. As always, there will be scenarios where remuneration is not called for nor will it occur.

Section 8 – Direct Deposit

All certificated teachers who are newly employed will be paid by direct deposit to their bank account. An enrollment form authorizing direct deposit must be completed and filed in the treasurer's office no later than August 15 to be effective for succeeding contract years.

Checks will be credited to the individual participating employee's account on each payday. Once funds have been transferred to the receiving bank(s), the bank(s) become responsible for deposits to the employee account.

Participants in direct deposit will receive a pay stub each pay date. Employees who are not on direct deposit will receive their paycheck on the next regularly scheduled work day after a calamity day via the school courier.

Section 9 – Pay for Substituting

In the event that every effort is exhausted and a substitute teacher cannot be assigned to an absent teacher's class, the administrator may distribute and assign those students to another teacher(s) with compensation. The teacher(s) will be compensated at the hourly substitute rate of \$27.12/hour for 2021-2022; \$27.66/hour for 2022-2023; \$28.21/hour for 2023-2024..

ARTICLE 14 – Equal Opportunity Employment

Section 1 – Employment Practices

The Board shall employ candidates regardless of race, creed, religion, gender, color, national origin, age, disability, ancestry, genetic information, military status, sexual orientation, gender identity, and marital status, provided the candidates meet the qualifications of vacant positions and are the most qualified of the candidates interviewed.

Section 2 – Contract Provisions

The provisions of this agreement, and the wages, hours, terms, and conditions of employment shall be applied by the Board and the Association in a manner which is not arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory and without regard to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, gender, disability, ancestry, genetic information, military status, sexual orientation, gender identity, and marital status.

Section 3 – Rights of Citizenship

Teachers shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship and no religious or political activities of any teacher or lack thereof shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination with respect to the professional employment of such teacher, consistent with the Code of Ethics of the Education Profession, and the Ohio Revised Code.

ARTICLE 15 – General Agreements

Section 1 – New or Revised Positions

The Board and/or its representatives will determine the establishment of new or revised positions for certificated personnel which are deemed necessary for the operation of the school system. The intent of Article 5, Section 4, of this agreement shall not be negated by this section.

Section 2 - Board and Association Consultation

The Board, through the administration, will consult with the president of the Association or its designee whenever practicable on any new or modified fiscal budgetary or tax problems, instructional programs, building closings, or major changes in the school calendar, or major revisions of education policy which are proposed or under consideration when the content thereof is not mandated by law.

Section 3 - Maintenance of Standards

All terms, conditions, and benefits of employment not controlled by other provisions of this agreement, shall be maintained, within the resources available, at not less than the level in effect as of the effective date of this agreement; to the extent that any actions are taken by the Board and/or its designees which will reduce such terms, conditions and benefits of employment not otherwise controlled by other provisions of this agreement, said actions will be discussed with the president of the Association; upon request, to permit the Association to provide alternative recommendations to such actions.

Section 4 - Provisions Contrary to Law

Should any article, section, or clause of this agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, said article, section, or clause shall be deemed invalid except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions hereof shall continue in full force and effect for the duration of the agreement. Those declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be renegotiated beginning within thirty (30) days of such article, section, or clause being declared illegal.

Section 5 - Integration Provision

It is understood and agreed by and between the parties that this agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, abrogating any and all prior verbal or written agreements or understandings whatsoever not specifically incorporated herein during the term of this agreement.

Section 6 - Duration of Contract

Termination Provisions: This agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021.

Section 7 - Additional Positions - Extra Pay

In the event that additional positions are proposed during the terms of this agreement in the extra duty, extracurricular, supervisory, or instructional areas, the provisions of Article I, Section 1, paragraph 4 shall be implemented.

Section 8 - Substitute Teachers

Any teacher who has regularly scheduled classes will be provided a substitute when absent, for a half day or longer, provided a substitute can be obtained.

The Board agrees to begin calling substitute teachers by 6:00 a.m. each day, or as soon as practical. Substitute teacher pay will be reviewed annually by the administration and discussed with the Association president or designee, prior to making a recommendation to the Board. A survey of area school districts will serve as a basis for any pay adjustment.

In the event a substitute teacher cannot be obtained and a member of the bargaining unit is required to teach/supervise a class during his/her planning period, that teacher will be paid at the established rate.

No member of the bargaining unit shall be required to give up his/her planning period an unreasonable number of times in any school year.

Tutors may be reassigned to a teaching position that would otherwise be filled by a long-term substitute teacher only under the following conditions:

- The reassignment is made only with the agreement of the Tutor, the Association and the District Administration.
- The Tutor maintains his/her status as a Tutor including all the rights and limitations granted to Tutors by the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This shall include maintaining:
 - Current rate of pay and benefits during such reassignment.
 - Same rights to return to a Tutor position upon completion of the reassignment that they would have had if they had not been reassigned.

It is understood that these conditions pertain to a "long-term" reassignment and do not prohibit administration from the occasional, temporary reassignment of a Tutor to serve in lieu of a "daily" substitute in situations in which a substitute cannot be otherwise located for a few hours or even for a full day. It is not the intent of administration to use Tutors as daily substitutes except in such emergency circumstances.

A procedure will be developed in which all certified staff are required to substitute on a rotating basis when an emergency staff absence exists. The procedure will be reviewed annually. TAWLS members will be compensated at the negotiated hourly rate for subbing.

Section 9 - No Strike

During the term of this agreement or any extensions thereof, there shall be no lockout, no strike, no sympathy strike, no concerted action in failing to report to duty, no failure to report for duty, no willful absence from one's position, no stoppage of work, no slow down, or abstinence in whole or in part from the full, faithful, and proper performance of duties of employment. In the event of a strike in violation of the law, the Board shall have full recourse as provided by law.

Section 10 - Definition of Days

The term "days" when used in this document shall mean consecutive calendar days unless otherwise indicated. Any such period of time referred to by this document shall begin to run on the day following the day of the act, event, or occurrence. The last day of the period so computed is to be included, unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, in which event the period shall run until the end of the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday.

Section 11 - Adjustment of Time Limits

Time limits stated in this agreement may be extended or reduced by mutual agreement of the Association and the Board and/or their respective designee(s).

Section 12 - Gender References

References in this agreement to the male or female gender shall be construed to include the opposite gender.

Section 13 - References to Teachers

References in this agreement to "teachers" shall be construed to include bargaining unit members unless the context otherwise requires.

Section 14 - Enrollment of Children of Employees

The Washington Local School District shall permit the student enrollment of the dependent(s) of any full-time staff member regardless of school district in which they reside, tuition free pursuant to the District's open enrollment policy. The staff member must submit written notification to the superintendent/designee by April 1 of the preceding school year pursuant to such policy. Notification shall include the name, age, building, and grade level of the dependent(s) to be enrolled and reason for building preference. No child may be admitted under this provision after the first day of classes of any school year. Assignment of students to a building and class shall be made or denied after reviewing building enrollment data. If a full-time staff member dies while in the employment of Washington Local Schools, any dependent already enrolled in Washington Local Schools, and any dependent already alive at the time of the employee's death but not yet of school age, shall be eligible to attend Washington Local Schools, tuition free, pursuant to the District's open enrollment policy, until they choose to leave the district or until they graduate.

In the event the District ceases its open enrollment policy, dependent/s of any full-time staff member, regardless of the school district in which they reside, may enroll tuition free.

ARTICLE 16 – General Economic Provisions

Section 1 – Salary – Prior Service Credit

A teacher shall advance on the salary schedule in force at the completion of a school year. A school year shall be defined as a minimum of 120 or more days in a single school district in Ohio during a given school year.

A semester shall be defined as a minimum of 80 consecutive days of teaching under contract on the same job.

Section 2 – Placement of New Employees on Salary Schedule

The Board of Education, at its option, may hire employees at step two (2) and freeze salaries until experience reaches that point. It is the Board's intent to execute this option only as needed.

Section 3 – Salary Scale – Degree/Credit Advancement

The Board shall permit change of contract for the purpose of advancing on the salary schedule up to and including the date of September 15, and up to and including the date of February 15. Action taken by the Board by September 15 will result in an advancement on the salary schedule effective the first semester of the school year. Action taken by the Board by February 15 shall result in an advancement on the salary schedule effective the second semester of the school year. (Effective with the fourteenth (14) check based on a twenty-six (26) check pay schedule.)

- A. Credit for work beyond the B.A. Degree shall be in graduate hours. Transcripts verifying same must be filed with the Washington Local Board of Education and the Human Resources Department. Teachers must request in writing a change of contract status to the director of human resources by September 15, or February 15, to receive credit.
- B. A maximum of eight (8) years is allowed for outside experience (teaching and military). Credit for military service will not exceed five (5) years.

- C. The eighteen (18) semester hours or twenty-seven (27) quarter hours of credit beyond the B.A. Degree shall be in graduate hours.
- D. Five (5) years of training on the salary schedule shall be defined as a M.A. degree in education or an M.A. in a specialized educational program.
- E. The eighteen (18) semester hours or twenty-seven (27) quarter hours of credit beyond the M.A. Degree shall be earned after receiving the M.A. Degree. Credit for hours earned shall be in a specialized program in education or toward a Specialized Degree and/or Ph.D. Degree in education. *
- F. To be placed on the Specialist column, a teacher must either hold the Specialist's Degree, or have thirty-six (36) semester, or fifty-four (54) quarter accredited hours after receiving the M.A. Degree. *

*Credit for hours taken prior to the earning of M.A. Degree will be accepted for the purpose of changing one's contract status, if the courses can be verified (bargaining member's responsibility) as unrelated to the earning of the M.A. Degree. Courses must be taken in education. If not taken in education, credits will be reviewed by LPDC to determine if they are eligible.

Section 4 – Trade and Industry Instructors (T&I)

- A. General Information for Trade and Industry Instructors:
 - 1. Trade experience means work done on a full-time basis, either directly related to the area of instruction and licensure or an allied trade. Part-time employment (less than forty (40) hours per week) will not be accepted for credit.
 - 2. Trade experience must be certified on a prescribed form or letter, signed by the official of the employing company, and filed in the personnel office of Washington Local Schools.
 - 3. A minimum of five (5) years of trade experience is required of which four (4) years will be considered equivalent to four (4) years of undergraduate college credit.

In granting credit for trade experience, a year will be considered to be a minimum of ten (10) calendar months.

- B. A T&I Instructor to Qualify for a B.A. Degree Pay Schedule Must Satisfy One of the Following:
 - 1. Must have a B.A. degree in education with a minimum of three (3) years trade experience in the trade to be taught.
 - 2. Must be a high school graduate and possess a minimum of five (5) years trade experience in the trade to be taught.
- C. A T&I Instructor to Qualify for a B.A. + 27 Quarter Hours or B.A. + 18 Semester Hours Pay Schedule Must Satisfy One of the Following:
 - 1. Must possess a B.A. degree in education plus twenty-seven (27) quarter hours or eighteen (18) semester hours of approved graduate college credit.
 - 2. Must attain ninety-five (95) quarter hours or sixty-three (63) semester hours of approved college credit after meeting requirements for the B.A. salary schedule.
- D. A T&I Instructor to Qualify for the M.A. Degree Pay Schedule Must Satisfy One of the Following:
 - 1. Must have a M.A. degree in education.
 - 2. Must have a B.A. degree in education received after meeting the requirements of the B.A. + 27 quarter hours or B.A. + 18 semester hours salary schedule.

E. A T&I instructor to qualify for the M.A. + 27 quarter hours or M.A. + 18 semester hours pay schedule must have a M.A. degree in education plus twenty-seven (27) quarter hours or eighteen (18) semester hours of graduate college credit.

A T&I instructor to qualify for the specialist pay schedule must have a specialist degree in education.

Section 5 – Career Technical Business/Business Office Education Instructors (BOE)

- A. Work Experience Credit: Each instructor fulfilling a career-technical business and office education position shall be given teaching experience credit for work experience as follows:
 - 1. One (1) year of teaching experience credited for one (1) year of work experience required for career technical business licensure.
 - 2. In granting credit for work experience, one (1) year shall be defined as twelve (12) calendar months. In computing a fraction of a year, ten (10) months shall be considered as one (1) full year of such experience.

Section 6 – Travel Reimbursement

Teachers who are required to travel during the regular school day will be compensated at the IRS rate in effect at the time of travel with a maximum payment of \$650.00 per year. A log of mileage must be maintained. A travel form provided by the treasurer may be submitted monthly or submitted by January 1 and July 1 of each year for reimbursement.

Section 7 – Outdoor Education

A stipend of \$100 per night, with a maximum of \$400 per week, will be paid to each teacher involved in the outdoor education program.

Section 8 – Counselors

All counselors will work an additional seven (7) days beyond the regular teacher calendar at per diem rate of pay. When mutually agreed upon by the counselor and the building administrator, two (2) three (3) of these additional days may be worked within the teacher's counselor's scheduled calendar year (e.g., Saturday or scheduled holiday break time).

Whitmer only: Establish a pool of thirty (30) days to be worked during summer months and scheduled by the high school principal. In the event that counselors assigned to Whitmer do not volunteer to work the days assigned from the pool (30 days), the building principal shall make the appropriate assignment and the counselor(s) will be required to work the assigned days at per diem rate.

Section 9 – Deans

All deans will work an additional two (2) days beyond the regular teacher's contract at their per diem rate of pay. The position of Dean will not be considered a department level position for purposes of transfer pursuant to provisions of Article 5, Section 11, of the Master Agreement.

Section 10 – Social Worker

Social Worker shall work ten (10) days' extended time and be compensated at per diem rate.

Section 11 – Junior High Curriculum Facilitators

Includes three (3) days extended time. Substitute teachers, up to a maximum of four (4) days per year per building, will be provided upon approval of the building principal.

Section 12 - Curriculum Consultant

The Curriculum Consultants will be contracted teaching positions compensated per placement on the teacher salary schedule. Upon mutual agreement between the Director of Curriculum and the Curriculum Consultants, the Curriculum Consultants will be permitted to work additional days beyond the regular teacher calendar. The Curriculum Consultants may be required to work additional hours that may extend past the typical teacher work day. Compensation for days worked beyond the teacher calendar shall be at the regular per diem salary rate, prorated for the hours worked, if the duties are an extension of the Curriculum Consultants' regular duties during the school year. If duties are outside the regular scope of the Curriculum Consultants' duties, the rate of compensation will be based on the rates established by the TAWLS Master Agreement for those duties. Upon mutual agreement of the Director of Curriculum and the Curriculum Consultants, compensatory time may be substituted for additional salary to be used at a mutually agreed time.

Section 13 – Speech Pathologists/Occupational Therapists

Speech Pathologists and Occupational Therapists (K-12) shall be provided twenty-five (25) hours of release time yearly or hourly compensation at the negotiated hourly curriculum rate.

ARTICLE 17 – Insurance

Section 1 – Health Care Insurance

The Board of Education will provide a comprehensive hospitalization and physician group plan, as presented as part of this contract, for those employees who work at least a seven-hour and fifteen minutes day and are employed for the school year. Both single and family coverage will be provided. New employees shall not be given the opportunity to choose the flex health care option.

Employees opting other health coverage at date of hire are able to enroll in the Washington Local School District program at a later date. Open enrollment for eligible employees without evidence of insurability will be August 15 - September 15 with coverage effective October 1. Continuous enrollment for eligible employees with evidence of insurability will be the first of the next month after approval of medical survey by carrier.

A working spouse who is eligible for a health care plan through another employer and pays 50% or less of the monthly premium must take at least single coverage through that employer to be eligible for coverage through Washington Local Schools.

If a spouse must enroll or re-enroll in their employer's plan, this must be done at the first available window period.

Full-time Bargaining unit members may elect not to be covered under the health care insurance plan. In lieu of this insurance coverage, bargaining unit members may elect to receive a \$1,368.00 payment pursuant to the provisions of the Section 125 - Employee Benefit Plan.

Bargaining-unit members who are eligible for family HMO coverage, and who select single coverage, will receive \$960.00 for medical and \$348.00 for prescription.

Employees shall pay a monthly share of health care and prescription premiums as follow:

2020-2021 2021-2024

• 10% of monthly premium effective September 1, 2020 2022 with a rate cap of \$50 60 per month for single and \$130 150 per month for family.

In the event of a change in the need for coverage due to a major life event causing a cessation of the teacher's alternate source of coverage during the waiver year (e.g. death of spouse, divorce, dissolution, spouse loss of job), the teacher may reinstate coverage effective the first day of the following month without having to meet any preexisting condition requirement provided she/he has filed the proper application with the Office of the Treasurer. Such re-entry into the insurance program will preclude the bargaining unit member from receiving the health care insurance waiver payment in lieu of coverage as indicated during the waiver year. Waiver payment shall be made to such persons on a pro rata basis.

Part-Time Bargaining Unit Member/Insurance Coverage

The Board of Education will pay for the same percent of the cost of HMO Health Care/Prescription and other insurance as the percentage of the employment contract.

The employee may enroll in insurance programs by paying the remaining percentage of the premium. If "Flex HMO" type coverage is requested, the employee must pay the difference between the HMO premium and the Flex HMO type plan premium plus the remaining percentage. New employees shall not be given the opportunity to choose the flex health care option.

Health Care Premium Savings Payment

All 2012-2013 TAWLS members who are returning for the 2013-2014 school year would be eligible to receive the sharing of health care premium savings payment.

- If there is a one-year (1) rate in 2013-2014 and that rate is less than a 10% increase, the full difference will be paid to TAWLS members.
- If there is a two-year (2) rate for 2013-2015 and that combined rate is less than 17.5%, half of the difference will be paid to TAWLS members.
- If there is a three-year (3) rate for 2013-2016 and that combined rate is less than 25%, half of the difference will be paid to TAWLS members.

Section 2 – Life Insurance

The Board of Education will provide a life insurance policy for employees covered by this contract. For those employees who work at least a seven-hour and fifteen-minute day and are employed for the school year, the amount of coverage will be \$50,000.

For those employees who work at least a three-hour day or two blocks each term, and have completed one (1) full contractual year of employment with the Washington Local School System, the amount of coverage will be \$25,000.

The Board of Education will continue to provide the employee's life insurance benefit under this contract if an employee becomes eligible for disability retirement as approved by the State Teachers Retirement System. The employee's written notification of disability has to be received by the treasurer's office within twelve (12) months from date of occurrence. The employee is responsible for obtaining initial and continuing proof of disability. Applications are on file in the treasurer's office.

Section 3 – Dental Insurance

Dental Insurance coverage shall be provided pursuant to agreed upon specifications and as outlined in Section 1. The Board shall have and retain the right to select and change carrier.

Section 4 – Vision Insurance

Vision Insurance coverage shall be provided pursuant to agreed upon specifications and as outlined in Section 1. The Board shall have and retain the right to select and change carrier.

Section 5 – Prescription Drug Insurance

A prescription drug insurance plan shall be provided. In lieu of this insurance coverage, bargaining-unit members may elect to receive a \$636.00 payment.

Section 6 – Employee Liability Insurance

Prior to purchasing liability insurance which provides coverage to employees different from present levels, the superintendent/designee will discuss the matter with the president of TAWLS.

Section 7 – COBRA - Continuation of Insurance

A. COBRA

Pursuant to 4117.10(A), it is hereby provided that Title XXII of the Public Health Service Act, 41 U.S.C.§201, et seq., shall specify the Board's obligation to offer continuation of group health care benefits to covered employees and their qualified beneficiaries, as those terms are defined in the Public Health Service Act.

B. Continuation of Insurance

Additionally, for continuation purposes, the Board shall carry employees on its payroll records, as it pertains to group life or any insurance other than group health care benefits covered by the Public Health Service Act, for twelve (12) months.

Section 8 – 125 Plan

Per legal requirements for implementation of 125 plans, and subject to minimum and maximum contributions and the employment of a 125-plan administrator, board agrees to:

• Shelter designated dollars per employee request for child care, elder care, and medical expenses.

Section 9 – Strike - Continuance of Health Care Insurance

In the event of a strike authorized under ORC 4117, the employer will not interfere with the right of employees to maintain health insurance coverage at the group rate, at the employee's expense.

<u>ARTICLE 18 – Severance Pay – Certificated Personnel</u>

- A. Certificated personnel of the Washington Local School District will receive severance pay upon leaving the Washington Local School District based on the following considerations:
- B. In order to qualify for severance pay benefits, the employee must have been employed by the Washington Local Board of Education a minimum of five (5) years.
- C. Sick leave days shall be earned pursuant to ARTICLE 11, Section 1, and shall be paid at the rate of one-half (1/2) of the retirement formula.
- D. Severance pay will not be granted to employees who have been terminated from employment with Washington Local Schools for reasons of unsatisfactory/ineffective work performance.
- E. A certificated employee may qualify for severance pay only once in a lifetime.

- F. No employee will receive both severance and retirement payments.
- G. Severance pay must be requested by the employee in a letter to the treasurer.

<u>ARTICLE 19 – Retirement Pay – Certificated Personnel</u>

Certificated personnel of the Washington Local School District will receive retirement pay upon retirement from the Washington Local School District based on the following considerations:

- A. Retirement is defined as when an employee leaves the Washington Local Schools and is immediately eligible for monthly retirement income for life from the State Teachers Retirement System based on contributions to the retirement system by the employee and the Board of Education or has reached the age of 65.
- B. In order to qualify for any retirement pay benefits, the employee must have been employed by the Washington Local Board of Education a minimum of five (5) years.
- C. Sick leave days shall be paid pursuant to Article 11, Section 1 according to the following formula:

Days 1 to 300 at \$90.00 per day
 Days 301 to 350 at \$95.00 per day
 Days 351 and over at \$100.00 per day

- D. After submission of proof from the retirement system, the Board of Education will sponsor and implement a Section 403(b) Plan which will allow retiring members in the "Covered Group" to tax shelter their retirement pay. The Board shall be responsible for any administrative fees or costs of implementation of the Section 403(b) program.
 - Members of the "Covered Group" will have their retirement pay deposited into the Section 403(b) Plan sponsored by the Board.
 - Any amounts of money exceeding the current annual IRS 415 limit for the Section 403(b) Plan will have additional monies paid into the Section 403(b) Plan at the maximum contribution level allowed by IRS 415 for up to five (5) years beyond retirement until all monies are paid out. Future contributions will be made in January of each year following retirement.
- E. Employees must give notice on or before February 1 and retire at the end of that respective school year. If the above dates are not met, employee would receive 80% of the payment specified in C above.
- F. Disability retirement need not meet established dates in E of above. Payment will be made after five (5) consecutive years of disability retirement. No further retirement or severance pay will be made during lifetime of employee.
- G. No employee will receive both severance and retirement pay.
- H. After submission of proof from the retirement system, the Board of Education will sponsor and implement a Section 403(b) Plan which will allow retiring members in the "Covered Group" to tax shelter their retirement pay that exceeds \$1,000. The Board shall be responsible for any administrative fees or costs of implementation of the Section 403(b) program.

<u>ARTICLE 20 – Retirement and/or Severance Pay</u>

Upon Death During Employment

In the event of the death of an employee of the Washington Local School District who has otherwise qualified for the receipt of retirement and/or severance pay pursuant to any agreement or policy of the Board of Education of the Washington Local School District, said payment shall be made to the designated beneficiary/beneficiaries. The designation shall be made in writing by the employee using form RS-100 and forwarded to the director of human resources for placement in the employee's Employment Record File. In the absence of such designation, payment shall be made to the surviving spouse if any, or in the absence of a surviving spouse, to the deceased employee's estate.

Within fifteen (15) days following receipt of notice of the death of an employee whose spouse and/or dependents are covered by group and accident insurance provided by the Board, the treasurer shall mail to the last address provided to him notice to such spouse and/or dependents of the option for conversion to an individual policy as provided by Section 3923.122 O.R.C.

ARTICLE 21 - STRS Pick Up

The Board of Education shall designate each employee's mandatory contributions to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio as "picked up" by the Board as contemplated by Internal Revenue Service Ruling 77462 and 81-36, although they shall continue to be designated as employee contributions as permitted by Attorney General Opinion 82-097, in order that the amount of the employee's income reported by the Board as subject to federal and Ohio income tax shall be the employee's total gross income reduced by the then-current percentage amount of the employee's mandatory State Teachers Retirement System contribution which has been designated as "picked up" by the Board, and that the amount designated as "picked up" by the Board shall be included in the final average salary, provided that no employee's total salary is increased by such "pick up" nor is the Board's total contribution to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio increased thereby.

In the event that there is a determination that the foregoing adversely affects the qualified status under the Internal Revenue Code of the contributions by the Board of the "pick up" contributions or of the STRS retirement plan, this "pick up" provision shall be null and void.

Extra Duty Schedule

Extra Duty Base - Current base salary schedule as negotiated for each year.

Holders of EDI contracts who cannot fulfill job responsibilities shall not be paid; however, if the holder of the contract partially completes responsibilities, payment shall be pro-rated as appropriate with the balance being paid to Board-approved interim replacement(s). In the event a Board-approved volunteer offers to perform job duties, the holder of the EDI contract shall retain the stipend. Future EDI employment shall be governed by the Master Agreement.

Athletic coaches, trainers, and managers will receive longevity steps for years in same sport.

- 5% of stipend for 5-9 years in same sport at WLS.
- 10% of stipend for 10-14 years in same sport at WLS.
- 15% of stipend for 15-19 years in same sport at WLS.
- 20% of stipend for 20 or more years in same sport at WLS.

Non-Athletic positions labeled "L" will receive longevity steps for years in same index position.

- 5% of stipend for 5-9 years in same index position.
- 10% of stipend for 10-14 years in same index position.
- 15% of stipend for 15-19 years in same index position.
- 20% of stipend for 20 or more years in same index position.

A list of those individuals employed in all categories on the Extra Duty Index shall be sent to the President of TAWLS on approximately October 1 of each academic year.

EDI schedule to be reduced by 10% for non WLS staff members plus change to the pay structure for the 2020-2021 school year subject to MOU.

ATHLETIC ACTIVITIES

Pos. #	Position	Index	Base 2021-22 39,055	# of Pos.
1	Athletic Supervisor/Whitmer	0.29	11,326	1
2	Athletic Director/Jr. High	0.18	7,030	1
3	Asst. Athletic Director/Jr. High	0.14	5,468	1
4	Equipment Manager	0.14	5,468	1
6	Ticket Manager	0.15	5,858	1
7	Football - Head Coach	0.27	10,545	1
8	Football - Associate Coach	0.185	7,225	7
9	Football - Freshman Coach	0.13	5,077	4
10	Football - Jr. High Coach	0.13	5,077	4
11	Football - Operations Manager	0.09	3,515	1
16	Basketball - Elementary Coordinator	0.04	1,562	2
17	Basketball - Head Coach	0.24	9,373	2
18	Basketball - Associate Coach	0.17	6,639	4
19	Basketball - Freshman Coach	0.13	5,077	2
20	Basketball - Jr. High Coach	0.13	5,077	8
21	Basketball - Elementary Coach	0.01	391	16
22	Basketball - Operations Manager	0.08	3,124	2
26	Wrestling - Head Coach	0.20	7,811	1
27	Wrestling - Associate Coach	0.14	5,468	1
28	Wrestling - Freshman Coach	0.13	5,077	2
29	Wrestling - Jr. High Coach	0.13	5,077	3
30	Wrestling Club - Director/Whitmer	0.024	937	1
31	Wrestling Club - Coach/Whitmer	0.012	469	2
34	Bowling	0.02	781	1
36	Broomball - Head Coach	0.02	781	1
39	Track - Head Coach	0.20	7,811	2

40	Track - Associate Coach	0.15	5,858	6
41	Track - Jr. High Coach	0.13	5,077	8
45	Cross Country - Elementary Coordinator	0.04	1,562	1
46	Cross Country - Head Coach	0.17	6,639	2
47	Cross Country - Jr. High Coach	0.13	5,077	2
48	Cross Country - Elementary Coach	0.01	391	8
52	Baseball - Head Coach	0.18	7,030	1
53	Baseball - Associate Coach	0.14	5,468	3
54	Baseball - Freshman Coach	0.13	5,077	1
55	Baseball - Elementary Coordinator	0.03	1,172	1
58	Softball - Head Coach	0.18	7,030	1
59	Softball - Associate Coach	0.14	5,468	3
60	Softball - Freshman Coach	0.13	5,077	1
63	Golf - Head Coach	0.15	5,858	2
64	Golf - Associate Coach	0.10	3,906	2
67	Hockey - Head Coach	0.17	6,639	1
68	Hockey - Associate Coach	0.13	5,077	1
71	Tennis - Head Coach	0.13	5,077	2
72	Tennis - Assistant Coach	0.03	1,172	2
74	Soccer - Head Coach	0.17	6,639	2
75	Soccer - Associate Coach	0.13	5,077	4
79	Gymnastics - Head Coach	0.17	6,639	1
80	Gymnastics - Associate Coach	0.06	2,343	1
81	Swim Coach	0.13	5,077	1
83	Volleyball - Head Coach	0.17	6,639	1
84	Volleyball - Associate Coach	0.16	6,249	1
85	Volleyball - Freshman Coach	0.13	5,077	1
86	Volleyball - Jr. High Coach	0.12	4,687	4
87	Volleyball - Elementary Coordinator	0.03	1,172	1
89	Weight Room Advisor	0.09	3,515	3
92	Cheerleader - Varsity Coach	0.12	4,687	1
93	Cheerleader - Jr. Varsity Coach	0.08	3,124	1
94	Cheerleader - Freshman Coach	0.06	2,343	1
95	Cheerleader Jr. High Coach	0.07	2,734	2
96	Athletic Supervisor - Jefferson	.02L	781	2
97	Athletic Supervisor - Washington	.02L	781	2

EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

"L" denotes positions which are eligible for longevity

101L	Activities Coordinator/Whitmer	0.15	5,858	1
------	--------------------------------	------	-------	---

104L	Auditorium Manager	0.12	4,687	1
107L	Speech Team - Head Coach	0.12	5,858	1
107L	Speech Team - Associate Coach	0.10	3,906	1
109L	Speech Team - Assistant Coach	0.08	3,124	1
110L	Speech and Debate - Assistant Coach	0.06	2,343	1
113L	Pantheon Advisor	0.03	1,172	1
114	Whitmer Newspaper	0.03	2,734	1
115L	Whitmer Yearbook	0.07	3,124	1
115L 116L	Jr. High Yearbook	0.08	1,172	2
119*L	Permanent Class Advisor	0.03	2,734	1
120*L	Student Council Assistant Advisor(Sr)	0.07	2,148	2
	* *		·	2
121*L	Student Council Assistant Advisor(Jr)	0.055	2,148	
122*L	Student Council Assistant Advisor(So)	0.055	2,148	2
123*L	Student Council Assistant Advisor(Fr)	0.055	2,148	2
124L	Student Council - Whitmer	0.11	4,296	1
125L	Student Council - Jr. High	0.06	2,343	2
129L	Career-Tech Student Org Chapter Advisor	0.04	1,562	5
130	Career-Tech Student Org Club Advisor	0.02k	781	16
133L	National Technical Honor Society	0.05	1,953	1
134L	National Honor Society	0.05	1,953	1
135L	Jr. High National Honor Society-7th	0.04	1,562	1
136L	Jr. High National Honor Society-8th	0.05	1,953	1
140L	Chess Club	0.06	2,343	1
141L	Art Club	0.04	1,562	1
142L	French Club and Honorary	0.04	1,562	1
144L	German Club and Honorary	0.04	1,562	1
146L	Spanish Club and Honorary	0.04	1,562	1
148L	Cultural Club	0.03	1,172	1
149L	Math Honorary Club	0.03	1,172	1
150L	Science Club	0.04	1,562	1
151L	Social Studies Club	0.03	1,172	1
152	Feminist Club Advisor	0.01	391	1
153L	Diversity Club Advisor	0.02	781	1
154L	Thespian/Drama Club Advisor	0.03	1,172	1
155	Clothing Closet Coordinator	0.03	1,172	1
160L	Youth-to-Youth	0.04	1,562	3
161L	Panther Dance Team	0.08	3,124	1
162L	Dance Team - Junior High Coach	0.03	1,172	1
163L	Secret Spirits	0.05	1,953	1
164L	Jefferson Jr. High After School Activities	0.03	1,172	2

165L	Pep Club	0.03	1,172	1
166L	Pep Club - Junior High	0.01	391	2
167L	Washington Jr. High After School Activities	0.03	1,172	2
169L	Elementary-After School Activities	0.11	4,296	8
170L	Activities Director	0.02	781	8
171L	Safety Patrol	0.07	2,734	8

WHITMER MUSICAL and PLAYS

172L	Coordinator	0.12	4,687	1
173L	Orchestra Director	0.06	2,343	1
174L	Vocal Director	0.05	1,953	1
176L	Set Design	0.05	1,953	1
177L	Choreographer	0.03	1,172	1
178L	Lighting Director	0.02	781	1
179L	Program & Tickets	0.02	781	1
181L	Winter Extrav	0.05	1,953	1
182L	Fall Play	0.10	3,906	1
183L	Set Construction/Design/Per Play	0.04	1,562	2

DIRECTOR

188	Jr. High Concert Band	0.02	781	3
189	Jr. High Concert Choir	0.02	781	2
190	Jr. High Orchestra	0.02	781	2
191	Whitmer Concert Band	0.04	1,562	2
192	Whitmer Concert Choir	0.04	1,562	1
193	Whitmer Stage Band	0.03	1,172	1
194	Whitmer Orchestra	0.04	1,562	2
195L	Show Choir	0.03	1,172	1
196L	Choreographer/Show Choir	0.02	781	1
197	Accompanist/Show Choir	h.	16.73/hr.	1
198	Accompanist/Chorale	h.	16.73/hr.	1
199L	Piano Accompanist	h.	16.73/hr.	1
200L	High School Chorale	0.03	1,172	1
201*L	Head Marching Band	0.16f	6,249	1
202*L	Associate Marching Band	0.14f	5,468	1
203L	Reserve Marching Band	0.09d	3,515	1
204L	Flag Corps Advisor	0.03	1,172	1
205L	Pep Band	0.04	1,562	1
206L	Pep Band Associate	0.02	781	1

207	Drumline Advisor	0.03	1,172	1
208	Majorette/Twirler Advisor	0.01	391	1

SUPERVISORY AND/OR INSTRUCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES

209	K-12 Virtual Learning Facilitator	.04L	1,562	1
210	Department Chairman Whitmer	0.13a/d	5,077	9
211	Department Chairman - Art	0.13d	5,077	1
212	Department Chairman - Music	0.13d	5,077	1
213	Department Chairman - Phys Ed	0.13d	5,077	1
214	K-12 Reading Department Chair	.04L	1,532	1
215L	Jr. High Curr. Facilitators-Jefferson	0.13b	5,077	5
216L	Jr. High Curr. Facilitators-Washington	0.13b	5,077	5
217L	Elementary Facilitator	0.10b	3,906	13
218L	Elementary - Head Teacher	0.10b	3,906	8
219	K-6 Elementary Special Education Facilitator	.04L	1,562	2
223	Bldg. Technology Facilitator - Jr. High	0.01	391	2
224	Bldg. Tech. & Student Initiatives (enrollment 1-499)	0.12	4,687	5
225	Bldg. Tech & Student Initiatives (enrollment +500)	0.14	5,468	3
227	Deans	0.15	5,858	4
228	Special Education	0.07i/n	2,734	2

MISCELLANEOUS

231	Art Coordinator - Elementary	0.06	2,343	1
232	Website Maintainer		28.64/hr.	1
234	LPDC Member	0.04	1,562	3
237	Summer School Teachers		28.64/hr.	
238	Nurses - Summer Work	m.	29.51/hr.	
239	Home Instruction Teacher		28.64/hr.	
240	Night School Teacher		28.64/hr.	
241	After School Detention Monitor (7-12)		25.50/hr.	
242	After School Acad. Intervention (K-6)	j.	28.64/hr.	

ADDITIONAL STIPENDS

- 1S. Elementary Music Program \$200 per performance/performance must be beyond the regularly scheduled school day/ max. \$400 per school year per building
- 2S. Elementary Talent Show Coordinator \$200 per building per school year
- 3S. Professional Support Resident Educator Mentors or PACE Mentors \$325 per semester

- 4S. Elementary P.E.programs \$200 per performance/performance must be beyond the regularly scheduled school day/ max. \$600 per school year per building
- 6S. Overnight stipend for supervision CTSO Chapter <u>and/or</u> Club Advisors <u>\$100.00/night-max of 4 nights</u>
- 7S. Overnight stipend for supervision Outdoor Education \$100.00/night-max of 4 nights
- 8S. Annual Art Show Elementary \$200 per building (for 7 Buildings)
- 9S. K-12 Music Department Stipend \$1,500 per school year (1 position)
- 10S. K-12 Health/Phys. Ed. Department Stipend \$1,500 per school year (1 position)
- 11S. Annual Art Show High School \$200 per school year (5 positions)
- 12S. Jr. High Art Show Stipend \$200 per school year (2 positions)

KEY

- a. High School Department Chair maintain release time
- b. Includes 3 days extended time
- d. Includes 10 days extended time
- f. Includes 15 days extended time
- h. EDI #197 2020/21 max (66 hrs.) \$1,113
- h. EDI #198 2020/21 max (80 hrs.) \$1,338
- h. EDI #199 2020/21 max (66 hrs.) \$1,113
- i. Grandfather persons holding positions through 6/9/93. Delete stipend for persons new to position thereafter.
- j. Establish a district-pool, minimum of 1,728 hours to be used for K-6
 - after school detention as assigned by building principal @ \$25.00/hr.
 - after school academic intervention @ \$28.64/hour for 2021-2022; \$29.21/hour for 2022-2023; \$29.79/hour for 2023-2024.
- k. To qualify for a stipend the program must have functioning, dues-paying student groups that have activities outside the school day.
- m. Nurses Each nurse will be allocated up to 35 hours for work during the summer. A portion of these hours will be reserved for kindergarten summer assessment and will be assigned equally to all nurses. Should a nurse decline kindergarten summer assessment, the hours will be deducted from that person's allocation (35) and given to a nurse willing to work kindergarten summer assessment. In the event that all nurses decline, kindergarten summer assessment hours will be equally divided and all nurses will be required to work.
- n. Intervention Specialists and Instructional Tutors (K-12) shall be provided twenty-five (25) hours of either release time and/or hourly compensation at the negotiated hourly curriculum rate. special education teachers shall:
 - Freeze their stipends at \$2,680.
 - These teachers will NOT receive the twenty-five (25) hours per year.

* Considered for longevity as one position

<u>APPENDIX A – Jeopardy Sheet</u>

Teacher	Building
You are being considered for nonrenewal. Improvements are necessary in the following	areas:
(Principals – please cite the document which c	ontains the area of concern and indicate the concern.)
Attempts have been made to help you solve yo	our difficulties in the following manner:
Additional comments:	
Principal's Signature	Date
I have read and understand the above statemen signature does not necessarily indicate agreement	its. I am fully aware of the implications. I understand my ent with the above consideration.
Teacher's Signature	Date
Teacher's comment: Rebuttal is attached	
Rebuttal will be forwarded to Human	Resources

Copies: ERF, TAWLS President, Assistant Superintendent

APPENDIX B - School Psychologist

	200 Days	186 Days	200 Days	186 Days	200 Days	186 Days
Step	2021/22	2021/22	2022/23	2022/23	2023/24	2023/24
0	75,972	70,654	77,491	72,067	79,041	73,508
1	77,782	72,337	79,338	73,784	80,925	75,260
2	79,595	74,022	81,187	75,502	82,811	77,012
3	81,409	75,710	83,037	77,224	84,698	78,768
4	83,223	77,398	84,887	78,946	86,585	80,525
5	85,036	79,084	86,737	80,666	88,472	82,279
6	86,851	80,770	88,588	82,385	90,360	84,033
7	88,662	82,456	90,435	84,105	92,244	85,787
9	90,475	84,144	92,285	85,827	94,131	87,544
10	92,287	85,828	94,133	87,545	96,016	89,296
15	94,036	87,514	95,917	89,264	97,835	91,049
16	95,915	89,202	97,833	90,987	99,790	92,807
Masters +27	1,782	1,782	1,782	1,782	1,782	1,782
Specialist	3,554	3,554	3,554	3,554	3,554	3,554
Doctorate	5,336	5,336	5,336	5,336	5,336	5,336

APPENDIX C – Tutor Pay Scale

STEP	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24
0	29.94	30.54	31.15
1	30.22	30.82	31.44
2	30.52	31.13	31.75
3	30.79	31.41	32.04
4	31.08	31.70	32.33
5	31.53	32.16	32.80

APPENDIX D – English Second Language (ESL) Pay Scale

STEP	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24
0	30.94	31.56	32.19
1	31.22	31.84	32.48
2	31.52	32.15	32.79
3	31.79	32.43	33.08
4	32.08	32.72	33.37
5	32.53	33.18	33.84

<u>APPENDIX E – Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule</u>

SUBSTITUTES & EXTRA TIME PAY SCHEDULE: 2021-2022 School Year

ALL NEW EMPLOYEES ARE REQUIRED TO USE DIRECT DEPOSIT

DEDIOD COVEDED

PERIOD CO	<u>VERED</u>			PAY DATE		
August	14 –	August	27	Contombor	10	
August		August		September		
August	28 –	September	10	September	24	
September	11 –	September	24	October	8	
September	25 –	October	8	October	22	
October	9 –	October	22	November	5	
October	23 –	November	5	November	19	
November	6 –	November	19	December	3	
November	20 –	December	3	December	17	
December	4 –	December	17	December	30	3 rd Pay
December	18 –	December	31	January	14	
January	1 –	January	14	January	28	
January	15 –	January	28	February	11	
January	29 –	February	11	February	25	
February	12 –	February	25	March	11	
February	26 –	March	11	March	25	
March	12 –	March	25	April	8	
March	26 –	April	8	April	22	
April	9 –	April	22	May	6	
April	23 –	May	6	May	20	
May	7 –	May	20	June	3	
May	21 –	June	3	June	17	
June	4 –	June	17	July	1	
June	18 –	July	8	July	22	(3 week Interval)
July	9 –	July	22	August	5	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
July	23 –	August	5	August	19	
August	6 -	August	19	September	2	

Full-time employees are paid 1/26th of their yearly salaries each pay date starting with the July 30, 2021 paycheck. The statement on your paycheck regarding "pay period" refers only to the pay period for extra time and for substitute pay, which are based on a time card.

Used sick leave, personal leave, vacation leave or compensatory time for 12 month employees are posted from filed affidavits and are therefore two weeks behind.

<u>APPENDIX E – Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule</u>

SUBSTITUTES & EXTRA TIME PAY SCHEDULE: 2022-2023 School Year

ALL NEW EMPLOYEES ARE REQUIRED TO USE DIRECT DEPOSIT

PERIOD COV	<u>)</u>	PAY DATE		-		
August	20 –	September	2	September	16	
September	3 –		16	September	30	3 rd Pay
September	17 –	September	30	October	14	
October	1 –	October	14	October	28	
October	15 –	October	28	November	11	
October	29 –	November	11	November	23	
November	12 –	November	25	December	9	
November	26 –	December	9	December	22	
December	10 –	December	23	January	6	
December	24 –	January	6	January	20	
January	7 –	January	20	February	3	
January	21 –	February	3	February	17	
February	4 –	February	17	March	3	
February	18 –	March	3	March	17	
March	4 –	March	17	March	31	3 rd Pay
March	18 –	March	31	April	14	
April	1 –	April	14	April	28	
April	15 –	April	28	May	12	
April	29 –	May	12	May	26	
May	13 –	May	26	June	9	
May	27 –	June	9	June	23	
June	10 –	June	23	July	7	
June	24 –	July	7	July	21	
July	8 –	July	21	August	4	
July		August	4	August	18	
August	5 –	August	18	September	1	

APPENDIX E - Bi-Weekly Pay Schedule

SUBSTITUTES & EXTRA TIME PAY SCHEDULE: 2023-2024 School Year

ALL NEW EMPLOYEES ARE REQUIRED TO USE DIRECT DEPOSIT

PERIOD COV	/ERED	<u>)</u>		PAY DATE		
August	19 –	September	1	September	15	
September	2 –	September	15	September	29	3 rd pay
September	16 –	September	29	October	13	
September	30 –	October	13	October	27	
October	14 –	October	27	November	9	
October	28 –	November	10	November	22	
November	11 –	November	24	December	8	
November	25 –	December	8	December	22	
December	9	December	22	January	5	
December	23 –	January	5	January	19	
January	6 –	January	19	February	2	
January	20 –	February	2	February	16	
February	3 –	February	16	March	1	
February	17 –	March	1	March	15	
March	2 –	March	15	March	28	3 rd Pay
March	16 –	March	29	April	12	
March	30 –	April	12	April	26	
April	13 –	April	26	May	10	
April	27–	May	10	May	24	
May	11 –	May	24	June	7	
May	25 –	June	7	June	21	
June	8 –	June	21	July	5	
June	22 –	July	5	July	19	
July	6 –	July	19	August	2	
July	20 –	August	2	August	16	
August	3 –	August	16	August	30	3 rd Pay

APPENDIX F – Retire/Re-Hire Teaching Staff

Individuals who apply for employment with Washington Local Schools, after a break in service due to retirement, may be employed under the following provisions:

A. Eligibility

- 1. Teachers who are or will be receiving retirement pay from any retirement system.
- 2. Must hold proper Ohio certification/licensure.

B. Employment contracts

- 1. One-year (1) limited contracts will be issued and will automatically expire at the end of that particular school year without further action or notice from the Board and as such will not be subject to ORC evaluation and notification timelines for nonrenewal.
- 2. If re-hired for a second or subsequent time, shall not receive additional service credit for placement on the salary schedule.

C. Salary and benefits

- 1. **Training:** Shall receive training credit at Master's Degree maximum if applicable.
- 2. **Salary:** With family health insurance shall be placed at step 1, with single health insurance shall be placed at step 3, and if re-hired for a second or subsequent time shall not advance on the salary schedule for experience purposes.

- OR-

In lieu of health insurance coverage with opt-out payment applicable, shall be placed at step 5 and if re-hired for a second or subsequent time shall not advance on the salary schedule for experience purposes.

- 3. **Tenure:** Continuing contracts will not be granted, regardless of length of service as re-hire.
- 4. Seniority:
 - a. Shall not accrue seniority regardless of length of re-hire service.
 - b. Upon re-employment, shall not have seniority and shall not accrue seniority regardless of length of re-hire service.
- 5. **Sick Leave:** Upon initial re-employment, shall have no prior sick leave accumulation but shall earn and accrue sick leave in accordance with the Master Agreement and if re-hired shall continue to accrue sick leave in accordance with the Master Agreement. Maximum accumulation shall be twenty (20) days.
- 6. Sick Leave Pool: Not eligible.
- 7. **Evaluation:** Annual evaluation of job performance may be conducted.
- 8. **Severance / retirement:** Not available.
- D. This provision and such salary and individual contract with a rehired employee expressly supersedes Revised Code section 3317.3 and all other applicable law.
- E. This provision and such salary and individual contract with a rehired employee will not be subject to grievance procedures of the Master Agreement nor through any claim or action filed before the State Employment Relations Board (SERB) or any court of law.

TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE: 2021-2022

YRS.EXP	INDEX	B.A.	INDEX	B.A.+18	INDEX	M.A.	INDEX	M.A.+18	INDEX	SPEC
0	1.00	39,639	1.06	42,017	1.12	44,396	1.18	46,774	1.24	49,152
1	1.06	42,017	1.12	44,396	1.18	46,774	1.24	49,152	1.30	51,531
2	1.12	44,396	1.18	46,774	1.24	49,152	1.30	51,531	1.36	53,909
3	1.18	46,774	1.24	49,152	1.30	51,531	1.36	53,909	1.42	56,287
4	1.24	49,152	1.30	51,531	1.36	53,909	1.42	56,287	1.48	58,666
5	1.30	51,531	1.36	53,909	1.42	56,287	1.48	58,666	1.54	61,044
6	1.36	53,909	1.42	56,287	1.48	58,666	1.54	61,044	1.60	63,422
7	1.42	56,287	1.48	58,666	1.54	61,044	1.60	63,422	1.66	65,801
8	1.48	58,666	1.54	61,044	1.60	63,422	1.66	65,801	1.72	68,179
9	1.54	61,044	1.60	63,422	1.66	65,801	1.72	68,179	1.78	70,557
10	1.60	63,422	1.66	65,801	1.72	68,179	1.78	70,557	1.84	72,936
11	1.63	64,612	1.72	68,179	1.78	70,557	1.84	72,936	1.90	75,314
12	1.63	64,612	1.78	70,557	1.84	72,936	1.90	75,314	1.96	77,692
13	1.69	66,990	1.84	72,936	1.90	75,314	1.96	77,692	2.02	80,071
14	1.75	69,368	1.90	75,314	1.96	77,692	2.02	80,071	2.08	82,449
15	1.75	69,368	1.93	76,503	2.02	80,071	2.08	82,449	2.14	84,827
16	1.81	71,747	1.96	77,692	2.08	82,449	2.14	84,827	2.20	87,206
17					2.14	84,827	2.20	87,206	2.26	89,584
18.5					2.17	86,017				
20	1.87	74,125	2.02	80,071	2.20	87,206	2.26	89,584	2.32	91,962
24					2.26	89,584	2.32	91,962		
24.5									2.35	93,152
27.5									2.38	94,341

TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE: 2022-2023

YRS.EXP	INDEX	B.A.	INDEX	B.A.+18	INDEX	M.A.	INDEX	M.A.+18	INDEX	SPEC
0	1.00	40,432	1.06	42,858	1.12	45,284	1.18	47,710	1.24	50,136
1	1.06	42,858	1.12	45,284	1.18	47,710	1.24	50,136	1.30	52,562
2	1.12	45,284	1.18	47,710	1.24	50,136	1.30	52,562	1.36	54,988
3	1.18	47,710	1.24	50,136	1.30	52,562	1.36	54,988	1.42	57,413
4	1.24	50,136	1.30	52,562	1.36	54,988	1.42	57,413	1.48	59,839
5	1.30	52,562	1.36	54,988	1.42	57,413	1.48	59,839	1.54	62,265
6	1.36	54,988	1.42	57,413	1.48	59,839	1.54	62,265	1.60	64,691
7	1.42	57,413	1.48	59,839	1.54	62,265	1.60	64,691	1.66	67,117
8	1.48	59,839	1.54	62,265	1.60	64,691	1.66	67,117	1.72	69,543
9	1.54	62,265	1.60	64,691	1.66	67,117	1.72	69,543	1.78	71,969
10	1.60	64,691	1.66	67,117	1.72	69,543	1.78	71,969	1.84	74,395
11	1.63	65,904	1.72	69,543	1.78	71,969	1.84	74,395	1.90	76,821
12	1.63	65,904	1.78	71,969	1.84	74,395	1.90	76,821	1.96	79,247
13	1.69	68,330	1.84	74,395	1.90	76,821	1.96	79,247	2.02	81,673
14	1.75	70,756	1.90	76,821	1.96	79,247	2.02	81,673	2.08	84,099
15	1.75	70,756	1.93	78,034	2.02	81,673	2.08	84,099	2.14	86,524
16	1.81	73,182	1.96	79,247	2.08	84,099	2.14	86,524	2.20	88,950
17					2.14	86,524	2.20	88,950	2.26	91,376
18.5					2.17	87,737				
20	1.87	75,608	2.02	81,673	2.20	88,950	2.26	91,376	2.32	93,802
24					2.26	91,376	2.32	93,802		
24.5									2.35	95,015
27.5									2.38	96,228

TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE: 2023-2024

YRS.EXP	INDEX	B.A.	INDEX	B.A.+18	INDEX	M.A.	INDEX	M.A.+18	INDEX	SPEC
0	1.00	41,241	1.06	43,715	1.12	46,190	1.18	48,664	1.24	51,139
1	1.06	43,715	1.12	46,190	1.18	48,664	1.24	51,139	1.30	53,613
2	1.12	46,190	1.18	48,664	1.24	51,139	1.30	53,613	1.36	56,088
3	1.18	48,664	1.24	51,139	1.30	53,613	1.36	56,088	1.42	58,562
4	1.24	51,139	1.30	53,613	1.36	56,088	1.42	58,562	1.48	61,037
5	1.30	53,613	1.36	56,088	1.42	58,562	1.48	61,037	1.54	63,511
6	1.36	56,088	1.42	58,562	1.48	61,037	1.54	63,511	1.60	65,986
7	1.42	58,562	1.48	61,037	1.54	63,511	1.60	65,986	1.66	68,460
8	1.48	61,037	1.54	63,511	1.60	65,986	1.66	68,460	1.72	70,935
9	1.54	63,511	1.60	65,986	1.66	68,460	1.72	70,935	1.78	73,409
10	1.60	65,986	1.66	68,460	1.72	70,935	1.78	73,409	1.84	75,883
11	1.63	67,223	1.72	70,935	1.78	73,409	1.84	75,883	1.90	78,358
12	1.63	67,223	1.78	73,409	1.84	75,883	1.90	78,358	1.96	80,832
13	1.69	69,697	1.84	75,883	1.90	78,358	1.96	80,832	2.02	83,307
14	1.75	72,172	1.90	78,358	1.96	80,832	2.02	83,307	2.08	85,781
15	1.75	72,172	1.93	79,595	2.02	83,307	2.08	85,781	2.14	88,256
16	1.81	74,646	1.96	80,832	2.08	85,781	2.14	88,256	2.20	90,730
17					2.14	88,256	2.20	90,730	2.26	93,205
18.5					2.17	89,493				
20	1.87	77,121	2.02	83,307	2.20	90,730	2.26	93,205	2.32	95,679
24					2.26	93,205	2.32	95,679		
24.5									2.35	96,916
27.5									2.38	98,154

Signature Page